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Chairman’s Statement

In November 2001 Montpellier Group Plc raised its investment in
Cape PLC to 29.9% as z result of a purchase of shares from Rutiand
Trust PLC. Rutland Trust's shareholding in Cape PLC reduced from
25% to 14.7%. At the same time | was appointed Chairman of Cape
PLC, replacing Michael Langdon.

The past two years have been very difficult for Cape PLC. We are
in the process of reorganising the Group to end many of the
uncertainties of the past; to extricate the Group from the burden of
the South African litigaticn: to realise cash for the Group from the
disposal of the Manufacturing Civision {Cape Calsil}; and to reduce
substantially the Group’s borrowings.

As the first part of the restructuring, a circular for the proposed
disposal of the Cape Calsil business will be issued at the same

time as the 2001 financial statements and will provide you with
information regarding the Proposal, to explain why vour Directors
consider the Proposal to De in the best interests of shareholders as
a whole and to seek your approval of the Proposal. The circular also
contains a notice convening an Extracrdinary General Mesting of the
Company to be held at the offices of Cape PLC, Iver Lane, Uxbridge,
Middlesex UB8 2JQ at 10.00 a.m. on 11 September 2002 at which
the Resolutions reguired to authorise the Board to proceed with the
Proposal will be put to shareholders.

The Board intends in due course to send a further circular or
circulars to Shareholders giving details of other parts of the
restructuring, namely the South African Settlement and proposals
for the future of the Industrial Services Division.

South African Settlement

In 1997, proceedings were commenced against Cape PLC in the
English courts by five South African residents who claimed they
suffered injury as the result of asbestos mining activities carried on
by former Cape Group companies. By 20C1 the number of claimants
had risen to over 7,500 many of whom were supported by British
Legal Aid. In July 2000 the House of Lords agread 1o allow the
claimants to pursue their actions in the English courts. The trial of
lead cases was due to commence in the High Court in April 2002,

Discussions in pursuit of a settlement continued between Cape PLC's
representatives and those of the claimants in the South African
Litigation throughout the tate autumn of 2001 and culminated in the
Settlement Agreement being signed on 21 December 2001. The
terms of the Settlement Agreement are that Cape PLC will pay £20
miltion over a period of 13 years to a trust set up in South Africa to
compensate not only thase claimants wha are parties to the South
African Litigation but alse future sufferers from asbestos related
disease who can prove that their disease is likely to have resulted
from the Group's operations in South Africa. OfF the £20 million, £10
rillion was due to be paid by the 30 June 2002 and annual
payments of £1 million for 10 years thereafter. In addition, a
contribution will be paid of £2.25 million to the legal costs of the
claimants and this is anticipated to be recovered from the Group's
insurers. The South African government has agreed not to seek to
recover from the Group the costs of environmental remediation
arising from the Group's previous mining activities in Scuth Africa.

It was originally intended that a Scuth African Trust would be formed
and the settlement compieted by 30 June 2002. Owing to delays in
the restructuring, the date for completion has been extended by
agreement, and, if necessary, further extensions may be negotiated.
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Disposal of Cape’s manufacturing business - Cape Calsil

On 22 July 2002 Cape Pi.C announced that it had exchanged
contracts for the sale of the major part of its manufaciuring division,
Cape Calsll, to Promat Glasgow Limited (“Promat”) a subsidiary of
Promat International NV, a part of the Belgian Etex group. Cape Calsil
specialises in the production and sale of systems for passive fire
protection and high temperature insulation.

The proceeds from the sale will be used to repay bank debt.

Details of the sale of the Cape Calsil Business
Cape Calsil has entered into a conditional agreement for the sale of

certain of the business and assets of the manufacturing division
comprising of:

- all the business and assets of the manufacturing and all other
activities at the Glasgow factory

~ the UK sales, marketing, finance and support activities relating
to the Cape Calsil business

— certain other items of plant and machinery relating to the
manufacture of the Dalfratex, DXP and TL products al the
Caerphilly factory

— the business and assets of each of the overseas sales and
distribution operations in France, Germany, Singapore, Hong
Kong, Malaysia and the Netherlands.

Under a transitional agreement, Cape Calsil will continue to
manufacture product at the Uxbridge plant on behalf of Promat for a
period of up to 9 months. The residual assets after completion will

comprise mainly the properties at Uxbridge and Caerphilly, which will
be sold as soon as practicable,

The sgle is conditional, amongst other things, on receiving merger
Clearance in the UK and other European countries and the consent
of Cape’s shareholders. The consideration for the sale is £9.2 million,
subject to an adjustment by reference to the value of certain assets
and to the extent that any apportionment needs to be made of pre-
payments and creditors, On completion of the sale, £1.5 million of
the consideration will be praced in a retention aceount 1o be released
over a six month period according to the amount of product made
available to Promat during the 6 manth transiticnal period after
completion. £1.3 million will be placed in a trust account which could
remain open until 2052 and which is to be used solely to meet
possible future industrial disease claims from employees who transfer
to Promat as part of the sale. Cape could be otliged to pay up to a
further £0.8 million of the consideration it will receive at completion

into the trust account in the event that employees from the Uxbridge
site transfer to Promat,

Cape Calsil has given Promat warranties and indemnities in respect
of the Cape Calsil business. The iability of Cape Calsil pursuant to
the warranties is capped at the amount of the consideration and
thera are individual and aggregate thresholds on Promat's ability to
make claims under the warranties. In view of the historic activities
carried on by the Cape Calsil business and the ongoing risks in
refation 1o industrial disease claims, Cape Calsil has agreed to
indemnify Promat and its group against asbeastos related or other
environmental labilities.



Cape has guaranteed the ohligations of Cape Calsil under the
agreements. Cape will covenant not to undertake any act which will
cause it to be unable to meet ¢clzims under the guarantee. Promat
international NV has entered into an agreement to guarantee certain
specific obligations of Promat to pay amongst other things the

consideraticn and the rent payable under the sub-lease of the
Glasgow factory.

The employees at the Glasgow site, certain manufacturing employees
at Caerphttly, the szles, marketing, finance and support employees at
Uxbridge, Washington and Wellingborough and the employees in the
overseas operations will transfer to Promat or a member of Promat's
group.

Banking

Cape PLC has for some years required a high level of borrowings.
The Board intends that the disposal of the Cape Industrial Services
Division (CiS) and Cape Calsil, and the sale of further assets should
eliminate the current bank berrowings within 18 months,

On the basis that there is a flotation of CIS, outline agresment has
been reached with the Group's existing bankers for new facilities of
up to £12.5 million expiring on 31 December 2003, with repayments
matched to proceeds from anticipated asset szles. The facilities are
cenditional on the following:

— ralsing £30 million from the partial flctation of CIS. This
lransaction would be dependent upon shareholders’ approval.

- the sale of the Cape Calsil business to Promat International NV.
This transaction is dependent upon shareholders’ approval.

— shareholders’ approval being obtained for the settlement of the
South African Litigation.

- satisfactorily comnpletion of legal documentation in respect of the
above matters.

if the fiotation of CIS takes place, it is anticipated that CIS will be
separately financed, without any reliance on Cape, with new bank
facilities secured on the assets of CIS.

If. for whatever reasen, the flotation of CIS does not proceed, the
Board has an alternative plan of continuing to run the Industrial
Services Division wholly within the Group and re-negotiate the

South African Settlement. The Group's banks have indicated their
willingness to consider continuing the provision of sufficient working
capital facilities to allow such an alternative plan to be implementad.

The Company needs the facilities to meet its potential liability to pay
£10 million under the conditional agreement for the South African
Settlement detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements. In addition
the Board anticipates being able to fund future settlernents of other
industrial disease claims from cash flows from operations and
investments. As aiso explained in Note 25, an adverse outcome to
the South African Litigation or 2n adverse change from the timing or
quantum of past claims experience could have a material effect on
the financial position of the Group.

The Group's banks have agreed to release their security over the
refevant Cape Calsil assets to allow the sale to Promat o complete.

The Group is dependent on the continuing support of its hankers.
The bank facilities are repayable on demand and, were support 1o be
withdrawn, the Group would not be able to continue trading.
However, the Directors, following extensive discussions with the
banks, believe that the banking facilities will be confirmed.
Accordingly, they believe that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its present requirements, that is for at least 12 menths
from the date of this document.

2001 Results

The Group loss before operating exceptional items was £1.8 million
{2000: loss £1.7 million) on turnover of £266.6 miflion {2000: £239.1
million}. The Group loss on ordinary activities before tax was £32.4
milion (2000: loss £15.0 million) after making an exceptional charge
of £31.9 million (2000: £15.7 million). The charge is made up of
£13.5 million representing the net present value of the conditional
settlement to be made to the South African claimants less a release
of provisions for future legal fees, and £18.4 million relating to a write
down in the value of the manufacturing assets.

| am pleased to say that Cape's principal business, Cape industrial
Services, had another good year in 2001 with operating profits of
£11.0 million. Trading this year is up to expectations. The
Marufacturing Division, Cape Calsil, has continued to under-perform
with operating losses of £5.8 million, A further exceptional charge of
£18.4 mitlion has been made against the Civision to reflect the
reduction in the estimated underlying value of the Division's assets.
(See Mote 4 to the financial statemeants).
With regard to industrial disease claims, a cenditional settlement has
been agreed with the claimants from South Africa. This, in turn,
requires the recognition of the anticipated cost by way cf an
exceptional charge of £17.9 million in the financial statements. This

is partially offset by the release of legal provisions no longer required
of £4.4 million,

Financing the Cape Calsil losses, the Cape Calsit reorganisation and
the industria! disease claims and corresponding litigation has had a
negative Impact on the net assets and financing resources of the
Group. Following the exceptional charges created in the year 2001,
the net assets of the Group have been reduced to £3.0 million. This
reduction in net assets has been partially offset by the introduction of
a pension asset of £17.5 million, foliowing adoption of the terms of
Financial Reporting Standard 17 in full by the Group. The net cash
outflow of the Group in the year was £8.8 million.

As a result of the exceptional charges, the Board will not be
recommending the payment of a dividend.
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Chairman’s Statement continued

Industrial Services Division

2001 2000

£m £m

Turnover 2151 1859
Qperating profit* 108 110
Net assets™ 37.9 35.0

*including joint ventures

The industrial Services Division had another successful year in 2001,
with turnover increasing by 16%. This was due to a generally high
level of maintenance expenditure by clients and significant one-off
projects in the UK and Middie East operations. Operating profit was
shightly down on last year due to margin ercsion and the impact of
bad debls incurred on the UK subsidiaries of Enron.

Throughout the year, the Division has continued to develop its
reputation for delivering a very high safety performance. This was
evidenced by the award of two Swords of Honour by the British
Safety Council for exceptional safety management performance.

Our Dutch business, Cleton Insulation, launched a scaffolding
business during the year. We have also continued te invest in the
expansion of the Middle and Far East operations. During the year,
Cape Perlite Systems {(which provides specialist insulation using
volcanic glass rock for liquid natural gas [LNG] cryogenic
applications) won projects in Singapore, Spain and Austratia.

Manufacturing Division

2001 2000

£m £

Turnover 47.8 50.0
Operating (loss) before operating

exceptional items™* (5.8) (4.1)

Exceptional items* {18.4) (8.7

Net assets* 19.4 32.7

*including joint ventures

The Cape Calsil Division has continued 1o incur financial losses as is
evidenced from the above summary and the financial statements.

A substantial effort by both management and employees has been
invested in attempting to imprave operations. In recognition of the
impact of operating losses of the business, an impairment provision
of £18.4 millicn has been made agzinst the carrying value of the
assets of Cape Calsil.
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Industrial Disease Claims

In addition to the settlernent of South African claims, the Company
continues to meet UK industrial tisease claims. As indicated in Note
17 of the financial statements, the net charge for the compensation
for industrial disease in the year 2001 is £3.7 million. Insurance
recoveries at £0.5 million were lower than in the year 2000, due to
one of our insurers being placed inte liquidation,

Directors

As a result of the proposed restructuring of the Group involving the
disposa! of Cape Calsil and the plans for the Resuftant Group, the
role of Group Chief Executive of Cape will cease 1o exist. In December
2001, after the conditional agreement for the South African
setflerment had been entered into with the Seuth African plaintifs, the
Board agreed with Mr Maclelian that he would remain with Cape until
the Group restructuring was substantially completed and, specifically,
until Cape Calsil was sold. Accordingly Mr Maclellan will resign from
the Board on the complation of the Cape Calsil disposal. The Board
would like to acknowledge Mr Maclellan's contribution to the
recrganisation. The Board has appointed Mr Martin May to the new
position of General Manager of Cape. He will take responsibility for
the day-to-day management of Cape, including the sale of the
surplus properties, completing the settlement of the South African
litigation and administering the agreed schedule of repayments to the

banks. Martin May, who is an experienced interim business manager,
will report to the Chairman.

Summary

The Directors believe that the actions heing taken in relation to the
three central issues (the poor performance of the Cape Catsil
Civision, the South African litigation and the restriction preventing CIS
from realising its full potential} will enable the Company to unlock the

value of its assets and to continue to meet industrial disease claims
in the future.

.f'""\..
/ ‘:\,\ A et
/\,"‘\\ DR

Paul Sellars
Chairman

22 August 2002




Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2001.

Principal activities

The Company and its subsidiaries form an international group
engaged in the supply of thermal insulation, scaffolding and related
services to major industrial groups and the manufacture of high
performance fire protection, insulation and building products for the

construction industry. The principal subsidiary undertakings are set
out on page 36.

Review of business and future developments
A review of the Group's activities during the year together with future
developments is contained in the Chairman's Statement on pages 2to 4.

Resulis

The financial results for the year ended 31 December 2001 are set
out in the financial statements on pages 10 10 35. The loss for the
year is £32.7 million {2000: igss of £15.6 million).

Dividends
No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 December 2001
(2000: 2.0p). Furthermore, the Directors are not recommending the

payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2001
{2000: nil pence).

Subsequent events

{i} The Company announced on 22 July 2002 that it has exchanged
contracts for the sale of the major part of its manufacturing division,
Cape Calsil to Promat Glasgow Limited (“Promat”} a subsidiary of
Fromat International NV, a part of the Belgian Etex group.

The sale is conditional amongst other things, on recelving merger
clearance in the UK and other European countries and on the consent
of Cape’s sharehciders. The Campany has also given certain warranties
and indemnities. The consideration for the sale is £9.2 million, subject
to an adiustment by reference to the value of certain assets and to the
extent that any apportion needs to be made of prepayments and
craditors. On completion of the sale, £1.5 million of the consideration
will be placed in a retention account to be released over a six month
period according to the amount of product made available to Promat
during the six month transitional pericd after completion. £1.3 million
will be placed in a trust accoumt which could remain open until 2062
and which is tc be used solely to meet possible future industrial disease
claims from employees who transfer to Promat as part of the sale. Cape
could be obliged to pay up to a further £0.8 million of the consideration
it will receive at completion info the trust account in the event that
employees from the Uxbridge site transfer to Promat. The remaining
proceeds from the sale will be used to repay bank debt. The book value
of the net assets of Cape Calsil at 31 December 2001 is £19.4 million of
which £9. million have been sold and the remaining £9.5 million wili
be retained by the Company for subseguent disposal. Further financial
information on Gape Calsil is given in Note 1{a}.

(i The Company received an indicative offer of new banking facilities
details of which are given in Note 2 of the Accounting Policies.

{iii} Subsequent to 31 Dacember 2001, the Group decided to dispose
of its shareholding in the Cape Goldsun joint venture 1o Goldsun
Davelopment & Caonstruction Co Ltd for a nominal value. There is ng
profit or loss arising on disposal as the Group share of the net assets
was fully written down at the year end.

Fixed assets

Details of the movements in the tangible fixed assets are given in
MNote 11(E) to the accounts on pages 22 to 23.

Donations

During the year the Group made charitable donations of £30,700
{2000: £26,000). There were no politicat donations {2000: £nil).

Directors

The Directors at the date of this report and their biographical details
are as foliows:

Paul Sellars (48)
Appointed Chairman in October 2001. He is currently Managing

Director of Montpellier Group Plc and a Directer of a number of
private companies.

lan Maclellan (54)

Appointed Chief Executive in August 1998 having been a Non-
Exacutive Director since July 1997. A chartered accountant with
experience in the construction materials, property and engineering
Industries. He is also a Non-Executive Director of Swan Hill Group PLC,

lan Widdowson (48)

Appointed Finance Director in December 1998. A chartered
accountant whe joined Cape in 1986,

Sean O'Connor (53}

Aopointad Non-Executive Director in July 1996. He was the Chairman
of Stoves Group PLC untit January 2001. He is a Non-Executive
Director of Sportingbet PLC, Graphite Enterprise Trust plc, Phoenix
Equity Partners, Crow Film and TV and Babel Media Limited.

John Pool {63)

Appointed Non-Executive Director in November 1997. A chartered
secretary who has spent most of his career with Anglc American and
Charter plc., He was Managing Director of ESAB AB - Asia Pacific
based in Singapore when he retired in 1996.

Paul Ainley (56)

Appointed Director in September 1999. He has been Managing
Cirector of the Cape Industrial Services division since July 1995,
Michaal Langdon and Christopher Dowling resigned as Non-Executive
Directors of the Company on 31 October 2001, In consequence of

Christopher Dowling's resignation, Paul Cartwright ceased to act as
his alternale Director.

lan Widdowson and Paul Ainley are the Directors retiring by rotation

under Article 80 and, being aligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the Annual General Mesting.

Pau! Sellars, having been appointed by the Directors since the last
annual general meeting, is reguired to retite at the Annual General
Meeting on 8 October 2002 and is seeking re-appointment by the
shareholders at that meeting.

Details of the interests of the Directors and their associates in the
shares and share opticn schemes of the Company are shown in Ngte
5 on pages 19 to 20. Except as disclosed in the accounts, no
Director had any interests in any contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries at any time during the year other than service contracts
and share option schemes. No Executive Director has a service
contract for a period in excess of one year’s duration or with provision
for predetermined compensation for loss of ¢ffice or an amount
which equals or exceeds one year's salary and benefits in kind.

The Company has maintained insurance to cover the Directors’ and
Officers’ liahility as defined in 5.310(3)(@) of the Companies Act 1985.

Supplier payment policy

The supplier payment policy for group companies is to agree terms
and conditions for business transactions with suppliers. Payment is
then made on these terms and conditions being met by the supplier.
The Company did not have any amounis owad 10 trade creditors at
the end of the year (2000: ni).

Research and development

The companies in the Group continue to place a strong empnasis on
the research and development which is needed to expand the scope
of the products required ta meet the changing demands of their
customers in the highly competitive markets in which they operate.

Costs charged to operating profit for these activities amount fc £1.2
million {2000: £1.3 million}.

05 > Cape PLC annual report 2001

L




Directors’ Report continued

Employment policies

The companies in the Group operate within broadly prescribed
personnel and employment policies. Each company develops
procedures which are most appropriate to the circumstances within
which it operates. The Group's training, career development and
promotion poficies provide equal opportunities for all employees.

Employment of disabled persons

Itis Group policy to encourage, wherever practicable, the
empioyment of disabled persons and 1o provide appropriate
opportunities for their training, career development and prometion.
Where employees have become disabled in the service of the Group,
every effort is made to rehabilitate them in their former occupation
or in some suitable alternative.

Empfoyee invelvement

The Group continues its practice of keeping all empioyees informed
on matters affecting them. Senior management is kept abreast of
developments in financial, commercial and personnel matters and
this enables them to ensure that employees at operational level are
kept informed. The Group operates pension schernes for the benefit
of eligible employees in the UK and overseas. The funds of the
pension schemes are administered by trustees and they are held
separately from Group funds.

Health and Safety

The Chief Executive has Issued & policy statement on the Group’s
commitment to & safe working envircnment for all employees. Each
divisional Managing Director Is respensible for the implementation of
the Group policy on Health and Safety within his area of responsibility.
During the year external consultants carried out audits at all UK
subsidiaries to ensure that proper orocedures were in cperation.

Substantial holdings
The Directors have been advised that as at 26 July 2002 the

foliowing have interests of 3 per cent or more in the issued ordinary
share capitai ¢of the Company:

Number of Percentage

ordinary of issued

shares shares

Montpellier Group PLC 16,243,480 2990
Rutland Trust PLC 7,968 875 14 .70
Fidelity International Management 5,407,600 .95
M & G Investment Management 5,399 814 394
Unibank A/S UBCC Acct 5,175,000 9.53

The Company has not received nofification of any other interests held
by persons acting together which at 26 July 2002 represented 3 per
cent or more of the issued ordinary share capital,

Financial instruments

Group policy in treasury matters continues to be the minimisation of
risk. The Group's financial instruments wutilised to finance the
operations of the Group comprise borrowings, cash and liguid
resources, and items such as trade debtors and trade creditors arising
directly fram the operations. The Group also minimises foreign
currency exposures through the use of forward currency contracts, it is,
and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy
not to trace in financial instruments. The Board regularly reviews the
risks assaciated with the financial instruments and agrees the policies
for their management. These policies have remained unchanged since
the beginning of 2001 {Note 21) and are summerised below.

(a} Interest rate risk

Operations are financed by retained profits and short term bank
borrowings. The Board considers it appropriate that such bank

borrowings are made in the relevent currencies at floating rates
of interest.
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{a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has overseas subsidiaries operating in continental
Europe and the Middle and Far Easl, revenue and expenses of
which are denominated exclusively in local currencies. In order to
protect the Group's sterling balance sheel from the movements in
exchange rates the Group aims to finance 70% of its net
investments in overseas subsidiaries with local currency horrowings.

A significant proportion of the Group sales are to customers outside
the UK. These are invoiced in the currency of the customer. Exchange
exposure is minimised through the use of forward currency contracts.
The Calsil and industrial Services Divisions also use forward currency
contracts for non sterling purchase transactions.

Annual General Meeting
At the Annual General Megting to be held or 8 October 2002,
resolutions will be proposed on the following items of special business:

(a} To disapply Section 89 of the Companies Act 1985.
The Directors consider it to be in the best interesis of the
Company that they should continue to have the power to allot
equity securities for cash other than 1o existing shareholders up
to an amount equal to five per cent of the Company's issued
ordinary share capital at 31 December 2001.

{b) To authorise the purchase by the Company of its own shares.
The Directors consider that it would be advantageous to obtain
the authority of the shareholders 1o allow the Company to
acqgulire its own shares in the market. The Directors would then
be in & position to act quickly in the interests of the Company
and shareholders generally if circumstances so warrant. A
special resolution {numbered 7 in the notice of meeting) wil! be
put to the Annual General Meeting to authorise the Company to
make market purchases of up to fifteen per cent of its issued
ordinary shares. The price at which shares may be purchased
will not be more than five per cent above the average middle
market quotations for the Company’s shares in the Londen Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days before
the date of purchase. Shares purchased will be cancelled.

This authority will expire at 7 Qctober 2003.

The Directars have no present intention of exercising this authority

if it is given. Purchases of the Company’s shares would anly be made
if this would result in an increase in earnings per share and be in the
best interests of the Company at the time. The text of all the
resolutions is set out in full in the notice convening the Annual
General Meeting on page 37.

The Annual General Mesting is to be held on 8 Octeber 2002

at the registered office of the Company, Iver Lane, Uxbridge,
Middiesex UB3 2)Q.

Close Company status

The Company is not a close company for the provisions of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988,

Auditors

In accordance with Section 283 of the Companies Act 1985, a
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhcuseCoopers will
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 8 October 2002.

By order of the Board

Homw

S H Smit
Secretary

22 August 20

lver Lane, Uxbridge,
Middiesex UB8 23Q
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Statement of Corporate Governance

The Board is cornmitied to high standards of corporate governance
throughout the Group. The Board is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for good governance and this statement describes how the
Principles of Good Governance and the provisions of the Code of Best
Practice identified in the London Stock Exchange’s Combined Code,
issued on 25 June 1998, are applied by the Company.

Cape PLC strives to maintain a good dialogue with institutional
shareholders, Regular meetings are held with institutional sharehalders
throughout the year to discuss the progress of the Company, future
growth prospects and strategy. Notice of the Annual General Meeting is
sent out to all shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting.
The Chairman and Chairman of the Audit Cormmittee will be available to
answer guestions at the Annual General Mesting on 8 Qctober 2002.

The Board

As at 22 August 2002, the date of signing the accounts, the Board
comprises three Executive Directors and three Non-Executive Directors.
The post of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate. Short
biographies of the Board members are shown on page 5. Constituent
members of tha Audit, Remuneration, Supervisory and Nomination
Committees, are shown on page 1.

John Pool and Sean O’Cennor are independent Non-Executive Directors
and free from any business or other relationship which could materially
interfere with the exercise of independent judgement. John Pool has
been identified as the senior Non-Executive Director and

is @ member of the Supervisory Committee. Sean O'Connor is also a

member of the Supervisory Committee, The purpose of this committee
is commented on in this statement,

The Board meets at least eight times a year. To enable the

Board to function effectively and allow Directors to discharge their
responsibilities, full and timely access is given to all relevant information.
There is a schedule of matters reserved for the Board's decision, in
order to ensure the maintenance of control over strategic, financial and
operational matters, |n addition, the Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Cormpany Sacretary and, shoutd the need arise,
procedures are in place for them to seek professional advice at the
Company’s expense. The Directors receive training and advice on their
responsibilities as necessary.

A Nomination Committee, chaired by Paul Seliars, was formed on
14 September 1999 to make recommendations to the Board on new
Board appointments.

Any Director appointed during the year is required, under the
Company's Articles of Associztion, to retire anc seek re-appointment by
shareholders at the naxt Annual General Meeting. The Articles also
require that one third of the Directors retire by rotation each year and
seek re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting. The Directors
required to retire are those in office longest since their previous
appointment or re-appointment. This will usually mean that each
Director retires at least every three years, although there is no absolute
requirement to this effect. The Board has rescived that each Diractor
will retire at least every three yaars, aven if this is not strictly required by
the applicaticn of the provisions of the Articles of Association,
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years,

Directors’ remuneration

Remuneration Committee

The following Directors have been members of the Remuneration
Commitiee during the year.

Sean O'Connor, Chairman

Michael Langdon (resigned 31.10.2001)
Christopher Dowling (resigned 13.03.2001)
John Pool

Paul Sellars (appointed 31,10.2001)

The Remuneration Committee is comprised entirely of Non-Exacutive
Directors.

The remuneration policy in respect of Executiva Directors is to ensure
that individual remuneration reflects the performance of the Group, the
performance of each Director, the intarests of shareholders and that the
overall remuneration package enables the Company to attract and retain
high calibre executives. A full report on Directors' emoluments, interests
and shareholdings is set out in Note 5 on pages 18 to 20.

Services agreement with Montpelier Group Plc

Since 31 October 2001, the services of the Chairman of the Company
has been provided by Montpellier Group PIc as part of the Services
Agreement (“the Agreement”) entered into by the Company with
Mentpellier Group Ple on 13 Decamber 2001 Fees are payable to
Montpellier Group Ple under this agreement for the services of the
Chairman in the amount of £250,000 per annum and will be reviewed
by the Supervisory Committes on or with effect from 31 October 2004
unless the Supervisory Committee shall determine otherwise in respect
of any prior pariod. Under this agreement, Montpellier Group Plc
received fees of £42,000 in 2001. The Agreement was ratified by the
Board of Diractors of the Company. The terms of the Agreement may

not be varied without an affirmative vote fram the majority of the
Supervisory Committee.

A similar agreement existed with Rutland Trust PLC until 31st October
2001. Under this agreement, Rutland Trust PLC received fees in 2001
of £208,000 (2000: £250,000).

The remuneration of Paul Sellars is determined by the Remuneration
Cornmittes of Montpellier Group Pl
Supervisory Committee

Al & meeting of the Supervisory Committee held on 30 QOctober 2001,
following the sale by Rutland Trust PLC of certzin shares in Cape PLC, it
was resolved that the Supervisory Committee, established by a
committee of the Board of Directors on 17 june 1996, should continue
in existence. A number of ey decisions relating to the Company
incfuding (without limitation) changes in strategy, the appointment of
Birectors and matters directly inrvolving Montpellier Group Ple are
reserved to the Supervisory Committea.

The members of the Supervisory Committee are Paul Sellars, Chairman,
lan Maclelian, Sean O'Connar and John Pool. Michael Langdon resigned
as a member of the Supervisory Commitee on 31 October 2001

The siructure of the Supervisory Committee is designed to ensure that
the interests of non-Montpellier shareholders (and previously non-
Rutland shareholders) in Cape PLC are represented at all meetings
where decisions significant to the running of Cape are to be taken.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the
Board.

Statement of Directors” Responsibilities

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the
Report of the Auditors, is made with a view fo identifying for shareholdars
the responsibilities of the Directors in respect of the accounts.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare accounts for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the profit or loss and cash flows of the

Group for that period. In preparing those accounts the Directors are
required to:

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

- stale whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and axplained in the
accounts;

- Prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is

inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will
continue in business.

07 > Cape PLG annual report 2001



R —————————————.

Statement of Corporate Governance continued

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group to enable them to ensure that
the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985, They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group

and hence for taking reasorable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularitics.

The maintenance and integrity of the Cape PLC website is the responsibiiity
of the Directers. The work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occured to the financial
statements since they were inftially presented on the website. Legistation
in1 the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in cther jurisdictions.

Internal control and risk management

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
control and the Board has delegated formal responsibility to the Audit
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the systern. Such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the rigk of failure to achieve
business objeclives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or ioss.

In line with the London Stock Exchange’s letter of 27th September 1999,
the Board confirms that, in respect of the application of principte D.2 of the
Combined Cade, there is an ongoing precess for identifying, evaluating and
rnanaging the significant risks facing the Group. This process is regularly
reviewed by the Board and accords with the internal control guidance for
Directors on the Combined Code, issued by the Turnbull Committee.

Iy refation to Code provision £.2.1, the process established for the
Group includes;

Processes

- An organisational structure with clearly defined lines of respensibility,
delegation of authority and limits of authority, which is supported by
documentation of policies and procedures.

— A comprehensive financial reporting system based on annual
budgats approved by the Board. Actual results and updated
forecasts ara prepared monthly and compared against budget. Cash
flows are controiled in comparison with the budget and forecast.

— The annual capital investment budget is approved by the Board
together with significant individual items prior to commitment.

— The management of each operating unit provides written confirmation
annually to the Group Finance Director that they are complying with
the Group’s policies and procedures and that appropriate internal
financial controls are in place and functioning properly.

— The Board receives regular reports on treasury, legal, pension and
insurance matters, In connection with industrial disease claims, the
Board has set up a computerised systern for registering and
processing claims lodged.

~ The Board also receives regular reports on the number of claims, the
amounts pald and the provisions carried.

- Formal business risk reviews performed by management evaluate
the potential impact of identified risk gaps and possible new risk
areas. Confrol, mitigation and monitoring proceduras are set and
actual occurrences are regularly reviewed.

Verification

- An Audit Comimittee of the Board, consisting of Non-Executive
Directors, considers significant control matters, receives reports from
the external auditors and reviews the factors which could affect the
objectivity and independance of the auditors. From time 1o time it
alse reviews the need for an internal audit function.

- An Executive Commitiee has been established with the sole purpose

of considering divisional and overalt group risks and controls, Results
are reported to the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the independant Non-Executive

Directors other than the Chairman and operates under the

chairmanship cf John Pool. They are responsible:

~ before the annual audit commences for reviewing the scope of the
audit to be performed by the external auditors;
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~ after the annual audit is completed for reviewing the: findings of the
external auditors and the response of management to those findings;

- for reviewing the Company's financial statements before they are
submitted to the Board:

~ for reporting to the Board on the above matter.

Compliance

Ir: addition to the Principles of Good Governance, the Combined Code
alse contained & Code of Best Practice detailing some 45 provisions.
The Board confirms that the Company has cormplied with these
pravisions throughout the financial year except for:

- the independence of the Chairman within the Remuneration
Committee in respect of provision B2.2, and;

- the Audit Committee comprising of only two Non-Executive Directors
in respect of provision D3.1.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern
basis of accounting. During the year the Group has met its working
capital requirements through an uncommitted secured bank facility,
which expired on 30 June 2002, On the basis that there is a flotation of
the Cape Industrial Services Division (CIS) outline agreement has been
reached with the Group’s existing bankers for new facilities of up to
£12.5 million expiring 31 December 2003, with repayments matched to

proceeds from anticipated asset sales. The facilities are conditional on
the following:

— raising £30 million from the flotation of CIS. This transaction would
be dependent upon shareholders approval,

— the sale of the Cape Calsil Division to Promat iaternational NV, This
transaction is dependent upon shareholders’ approval.

— shareholders’ approval being obtained for the settlement of the
South African litigation.

- satisfactory completion of legal documentation in respect of the
above matters.

If the flotation of CIS takes place, it is anticipated that CIS will be
separately financed, without any reliance on Cape, with new bank
facilities secured on the assets of CIS.

If, for whatever reason, the fiotation of CIS does not proceed, the
Board has an alternative olan of continuing to run the Industrial
Services Division wholly within the Group and re-negotiate the

South African Settlernent. Tha Group’s banks have indicated their
willingness to consider continuing the provision of sufficient working
capital facilities to allow such an alternative plan {o be implemented.

The Company neads the facitities to meet its potential liakility to pay
£10 million under the conditicnal agreement for the South African
Settlement detailed in Note 25 to the financial staternents. In addition
the Board anticipates being abie to fund future settements of other
industriai disease claims from cash flows from operations and
investments. As also explained in Nota 25, an adverse outcome to
the South African Litigation or an adverse change from the timing or
quantum of past claims experience could have a material effiect on
the financial position of the Group.

The Group's banks have agreed 1o release their security over the
relevant Cape Calsit assets to allow the sale to Promat to complete.

The Group is dependent on the continuing support of its bankers.
The bank facilities are repayable on demand and, were support to be
withdrawn, the Group would not be able to continue trading.
However, the Directors, following extensive discussions with the
banks, believe that the banking facilities will be confirmed.
Accordingly, they believe that the Group will have sufficient working
Capital for its present requirements, that is for at least 12 months
from the date of this decurment.

If the banking facilities are not made available to the Company or to
CIS, adjustments would have to be made to reduce the balance sheet
values of assefs to their recoverable amaounls, ta provide for further

liabilities that might arise and to reclassify fixed assets and long-term
liabilities as current assets and liabitities.



Report of the Independent Auditors’ to the Members of Cape PLC
for the year ended 31 December 2001

‘We have audited the financial staternents, which compnse the
Consolidated Profit and Loss account, the Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheets, the Consoiidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the refated
notes which have been prepared under the historical cost convention
as modified for the revaluation of certain fixed assets and the
accounting policies set out in the statement of accounting pelicies.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and accounting standards are set cut in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Cur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, United Kingdom
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Beargd and the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

We report 10 you our opinion as to whether the financial statemnents
give a true and fair view and arg properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. We also report 1o you if, in our
opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial
staternents, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing
Rules regarding Directors’ Remuneration and transactions is not
disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and
consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman’s

Statement, the Directors’ Report and the Statement of Corporate
Governance.

Wa review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the
Company's compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules and we repart if it
does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or fo form
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's or Group's
corporate governance procedures of ifs risk and control procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit inciudes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant fo the amounts and
disciosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the tinancial statements, ang of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's
circurnstances, consistently applied and adeguately disclosed,

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material misstaterment,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
apinion we also evaluated the averall adeguacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements.

Fundamental uncertainties

In forming our ¢pinion, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the financial statements concerning the impact
of, and accounting for, potential future claims for industrial discase
compensation. On the basis of information presently available, it is
not possible for the Directors to quantify, with sufficient reliability the
amount required to settle future claims and accordingly claims are
accounted for on the basis of claims lodged or settlements reached
and outstanding at the Balance Sheet date. However, if it were
possible to assess reliably the present value of the amount required
to settle future claims such that this was provided in the Balance
Sheet, there would be a materially adverse effect on the Group’s
firancial position. Details of the circumstances relating to this
fundamental uncertainty are described in Note 25 to the financial
statements. Our gpinion is not qualified in this respect.

In forming our opinion we have alsc considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the financial statements concerning the basis of
preparation. The financial stafements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on new banking facilities
being confirmed as the current facilities expired on 30 June 2002.
The financial staternents do not include any adjustments from a
failure to obtain these new banking facilities. Detalls of the
circumstances relating to this fundamentatl uncertainty and ot why the
Directors beligve it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements
on & going concern basis are described in Note 2 of the Accounting
Policies. Qur opinion is not qualified in this respact,

Opinion to the financial statements

In our opinion the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at 31 December 2001
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

B

PricewaterhouseGoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
West London

22 August 2002
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2001

Pre- Pre-
exceptional  Exceptional 2001  exceptional  Exceptional 2000
flems. itemns ferms tems
{restated} (restated)
Note £ £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover
Total turnover including group share of joint ventures 1 266.6 - 266.6 2391 - 2391
Less share of tumover of joint ventures 3.7) - (3.7) (3.2} - (3.2}
Group turnover 262.9 - 262.9 2359 - 235.9
Group operating loss 2,3&4 (1.1) {29.4) (30.5) {1.2) (15.7) (16.9)
Share of operating loss in joint ventures (0.7) (2.5) (3.2) {0.5} - (0.5)
Loss on ordinary activities before interest (1.8} (31.9) (33.7} (1.7} (15.7) (17 .4}
Net interest payable 7 {1.9) (1.6}
Other finance income 26 3.2 40
Loss an ordinary activities before taxation (32.9 (150
Tax cn loss on crdinary activities 8 {0.3) 0.5
Loss on ardinary activities after taxation 32.7) (14.5)
Dividends 9 - (1.1)
Loss for the year 19 {32.7) (15.6
Earnings/(loss) per ordinary share 10
- hasic and diluted before operating exceptional iterms 0.2p (4.4)p
— basic and diluted total operations (60.0)p {76.8)p

There is no material difference between the loss on ordinary activities before taxation and the loss for the year stated above and their historical

cost equivalents.

The above results are derived fram continuing operations.

Moverments in reserves are set out in Note 19 on pages 27 and 28.

The notes and informaticn on pages 14 tc 35 form part of these accounts.
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
at 31 December 2001

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
{restated) (restated)
Note £ £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 37.3 45.7 0.1 0.1
Investments 12 - - 63.3 838
Interest in joint ventures
Share of gross assels 12 5.0 5.2 - -
Share of gross liabilities 12 (4.9) (3.1) - -
0.1 2.1 - -
37.4 478 63.4 84.0
Current assets
Stocks 13 13.9 17.7 - -
Debtors 14 609 67.5 2.8 Q5
Cash at bank and in hand 5.4 16.5 - 0.5
80.2 101.7 2.8 1.0
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Short-term borrowings 15 {31.3) 3368 (31.5) (27.9)
Other creditors 15 {51.8) {55.7) (4.3) (3.7)
(83.1) (82.3) (35.8) (31.6}
Net current (liahilities)/assets (2.9} 12.4 (33.0 (30.6)
Total assets less current liabilities 345 60.2 304 53.4
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (0.2) 0.4 (9.3) (13.4}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17 (31.3) (26.1) (18.1) (6.3}
Net assets excluding pension asset 3.0 33.7 3.0 337
Pension asset 26 17.5 34.1 17.5 341
Net assets including pension asset 20.5 6/.8 20.5 673
Capital and reserves
Czlled up share capftal (includes non—equity interests) 18 18.2 18.2 18.2 18.2
Share premium account 19 1.6 16 1.6 16
Revaluation reserve 19 10.7 11.3 18.5 133
Profit and loss account 19 (10.0) 36.7 (17.8) 34.7
Shareholders’ funds 20.5 67.8 20.5 67.8
Equity interests 15.9 63.2 15.9 63.2
Non—eguity interests 4.6 4.6 4.6 46
Shareholders’ funds 20.5 67.8 20.5 67.8

These accounts were appraved by the Board /of irectors on 22 August 2002 and were signed on its behalf by:
* A

I D Maclellan Chief Executive

| R Widdowson Finance Director

t i
Ao |8 (kt e e *

The notes and information an pages 14 to 35 form part of these accaunts.

T

11 > Cape PLG annual report 2001




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
far the vear ended 31 December 2001

2001 2001 2000 2000
(restated)
Note £m £m £m £m
Met cash inflow from operating activities 20(a) 43 8.0
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 0.2 0.3
Interest paid (2.1} (1.8}
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (1.9} {1.5)
Tax paid 20(h} {0.8) (0.7)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets nat of grants (10.9) (8.9}
Purchase of additional shares in joint venture - (1.2}
Sale of tangible fixed assets 0.5 04
Net cash outfiow for capital expendiiure and financial investment {10.4) 9.7}
Equity dividends paid - (3.1}
Net cash outflow before use of liquid resources and financing {8.6) (7.00
Financing
Capital element of finance iease rental payments {0.4) {0.3)
Short-term borrowings (2.2) 5.2
Net decrease in cash 20(c) (11.2) (z.1)
2001 2000
(restated)
Reconcifiation of net cash flow to movement in net debt £m £m
Decrease in cash in the year (11.2) (2.1)
Inficw/{cutfiow) from the increase in debt and lease financing 2.6 (4.9}
Change in debt resulting from cash flows (8.6) (7.0
New finance leases {0.3) (0.8)
Exchange moverment in year 0.3 (0.2}
Movemeny in net debt in year {8.6) 7.8}
Net debt at 1 January {17.5) 9.7
Net debt at 31 December 20(c) (26.1) {17.5)

The notes and informaticn on pages 14 to 35 form part of these accounts.
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Staterment of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

far the year ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000
(restated)
Note £m £m
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation 32.7 {14 5)
Currency translation differences net of tax cn foreign currency net investments - 0.2)
Actuarial loss recognised in the pension scheme 26 (25.2) (8.3}
Movement an deferrad tax relating to pension asset 26 7.1 18
Total recoghised losses relating to the year (50.8) 212
Prior year adjustment 16 28.9 -
Total recognised losses since last annual report (21.9) (21.2)
Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
for the year ended 31 December 2001
2001 2000
(restated}
Note £m £m
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (32.7) {14.5)
Dividends - (1.1
(32.7) (156}
Currency translation differences net of tax on foreign currency net investments - 0.2)
Write-back of goodwill on Cape Calsil previously written-off to reserves 19 3.5 -
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (18.1) {6.5)
Net reduction to shareholders’ funds (47.3) (22.3)
Shareholders' funds at 1 January 67.8 90.1
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 20.5 67.8

The notes and information on pages 14 to 35 form part of thase accounts.

T
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Accounting Policies

. Accounting convention 3.
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost (a)

convention, except for certain fixed assets included at revaluation

and in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards.

. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern
basis of accounting. During the year the Group has met its working
capital requirements through an uncommitied secured bank facility,
which expired on 30 June 2002. On the basis that there is a flotation
of the Cape Industrial Services Division {CI8), outline agreement has
been reached with the Group's existing bankers for new faciliies of up
to £12.5million expiring on 31 December 2003, with repayments

matched to proceeds from anticipated asset sales. The facilities are
conditionat on the following:

{b)

- raising £230 million frorm the flotation of CIS. This transaction would
be dependent upon shareholders’ approval.

—~ the sale of the Cape Calsil Division to Promat International NV. This
trensaction is dependent upon shareholders’ approval.

- shareholders’ approval being obtained for the seftiement of the
South African litigation.

- satisfactory completion of legal documentation in respect of the
ahove matters, (d)

1T the flotation of CIS takes place, it is anticipated that CIS will be

separately financed, without any reliance on Cape, with new bank

facilities secured on the assets of CIS.

If, for whatever reason, the flotation of CIS does not proceed, the 4.
Board has an alternative plan of continuing to run the Industrial {a)
Services Division whotly within the Group and re-negoliate the
South African Setttement. The Group’s banks have indicated their
willingness to consider continuing the provision of sufficient working (o)
capital facitities to allow such an alternative plan to be implemented.

The Company needs the facilities to meet its potential lizbitity to pay
£10 million under the conditional agreement for the South African
Settlement detalled in Note 25 to these financial statements. In

addition the Board anticipates being able to fund fuiure settlements

of other industrial disease claims from cash flows from operations

and investments. As aisc explained in Note 25, an adverse outcome

to the South African Litigation or an adverse change from the timing (¢}
or quantum of past claims axperience could have a materiat effect

on the financial position of the Group.

The Group's banks have agreed to release their security over the
relevant Cape Calsil assets to allow the sale to Promat to complete.

The Group {5 dependent on the continuing support of its bankers.
The bank facilities are repayable on demand and, were support {¢
be withdrawn, the Group would not be able to continue trading.
However, the Directors, following extensive discussions with the
banks, believe that the banking facilities will be confirmed.
Accordingly, they believe that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its present requirements, that is for at least 12 months
from the date of this document.

If the banking facilities are not made avzilable to the Company or to
CI5, adjustments weould have to be made to reduce the balance 6.
sheet values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liakitities that might arise and to reclassify fixed assets and
long-term liabilities as current assets ang liabilities.
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Changes in accounting palicies
The Group has fully adopted the provisions allowed under FRS 17
“Retirement Benefits”. The adoption of this standard represents a

change in accounting policy and the comparative figures have been
restated accordingly.

On the impiementation of FRS 10 “Goodwill and Intangible Assats”,
the Group adgpted the transitionat arrangements such that all good-
will that had been written off directly to reserves would only he
charged to the Profit and Loss Account on subsequent disposal of
the business {o which it related. During the year the Group changed
its accounting policy to allow the goodwill te also be charged to the
Profit and Loss Account when the Group believes it has been
impaired. This ensures that the effects of impairment are applied
consistently across alf classes of assets. The effect of this change

in accounting policy in this year is a £3.5 million charge to the
Profit and LLoss Account, with no change in net assets. There is no
effect upon the prior year.

The Group has fully adopted FRS 18 "Accounting Policies” during
the period. The Directors have reviewed the Group's existing
accounting policies and consider that they are already consistent
with this new standard except as noted above.

The 2000 cash flow comparatives and neles to the financial
statements have been restated to realiocate items to more
appropriate cash flow headings. in addition, the 2000 directors'
emocluments comparatives have been restated for the incorrect
inclusion of noticnal company pension contributions.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial

staternents of the Company and all subsidiary undertakings for the
year ended 31 December 2001.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal. Goodwill that
arises on the acquisition of businesses is capitalised and amortised
over a maximum of 20 years. The difference between the sale
consideration and the book value of nef assets at the date of disposal,
plus purchased goodwill eliminated against reserves in previous
years, is included in profit on ordinary activities before interest.

The Group's interest in joint ventures is accounted for under the
£ross equity method.

5. Foreign currencies

Foreign currency assets and liabilities of UK undertakings and
the assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings
are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet dates. Profits and losses of ovarseas subsidiary
undertakings are translated into sterling at the average rates of
exchange during the year.

The differences arising from the transiation of net equity interests in
overseas subsidiary undertakings and of foreign currency
borrowings usad to finance these interests are deait with through
reserves as are differences between profits translated at average
and closing rates.

Turnover
Group turnaver for manufactured goads is the invaiced value of sales
and services of the Group. Group turnover for contracts reprasents

thie value of work executed during the year excluding intra-group
sales and VAT,




10.

11.

Accounting Policies continued

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment. Under FRS 15, the Group followed the
option within the transitional arrangments to retain the book values
of land and buildings, certain of which were fast revalued in 1990,
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation less the
estimated residua! value of tangible fixed assets by equal
instalments over their estimated useful economic Tives with the
exception that no depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The following rates are normally applied:

~ Freehold buildings — 2% per annum
— Leasehold land and buildings - the period of the lease
- Piant, machinery, fixtures and fittings —6%:% to 33':% per annum

Any impairment in the value of fixed assets is dealt with in the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises.

Leased plant and machinery

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that give rights
approximating to ownership {finance leases} the amount
representing the outright purchase price of such assets is
capifalised and the corresponding leasing commitments are shown
as obligations to the lesscr. The refevant assets are depreciated in
accordance with the Group's depreciation policy or over the lease
term if shorer. Net finance charges, calculated on the reducing
balance method, are included in interest costs.

All other leases are treated as operating leases and the annual
rentals charged to the gperating profit of the year,

. Compensation for industrial disease

Provision is made for compensation for industrial disease where

it is possible to estimate the lability with sufficient reliability. As
explained in Note 25, this is only currently possible in respect of
claims lodged and outstanding at the year end. Where this is not
possible, a contingent Kability is noted. A reference to the financial
movernent during the year 2001 is contained within

Note 17.

Research and development expenditure

Group expenditure on research and development, patents and trade
marks is written off when incurred.

Stocks and work in progress

Stocks are valued at the fower of cost and net realisable value.
Contracts are undertaken for customers either on a short or long
term basis. For short term contracts, work done is substantially billed
as periormed and for long term contracts, work is carried oui on a
substantially fixed or limited-price basis. With respect to the former,
turnover and profit are recognised according to work executed.
Amounts takan to turnover in respect of work dene not billed are
included within amounts recoverable on contracts. Costs incurred,
including an appropriate allecation of overheads, in respect of fixed
or limited-price contracts are inciuded in work in progress net of
progress payments received and provisions for foreseeable losses.
Any payrments on account or provisions for foreseeable losses in
excess of contract balances are included in creditors, Attributable
prafit on fixed or limited-price contracts is recognised according o
the percentage of estimated total contract value completed or the
achigvernent of contractual milestonies provided that the cuicome
of the contract can be assessed with reasonable certainty.

12.Capital expenditure grants
Grants in respect of capital expenditure are treated as deferred

income and are credited to operating profit over the expected useful
lives of the assets to which they relate.

13. Deferred taxation
Provision is made for deferred taxation on the liahility method in

respect of fiming differences to the extent that it is probable that an
actual liability will crystallise.

14. lnvestments in subsidiary undertakings
The Company revalues its investments in subsidiary undertakings
each year in order 1o reflect their underlying net asset values at the
balance sheet date. Provision has not been made for any taxation
liability on capital gains that might arise on the disposal of
subsidiary undertakings at the amount at which they are stated
in the balance sheet.

15. Pensions and retirement benefits
The Group operates two major pension schemes in the UK, one is
of a defined benefit type and the other of the defined contribution
type. Full valuations of the defined benefit scheme are performed
every thrae years, using the prcjected unit method.

The pension expense for defined coniribution schemes represents
amounts payable in the year. Under the defined benefit scheme any
current and past service costs are charged to operating profit and
interest costs and expected returns on assets to financing costs ar
income. Actuarial gains and losses arising from new valuzations and
from updating the latest actuarial valuaticn to reflect conditions at
the bafance sheet date are recognised in the statement of ictal
recognised gains and losses.

Further information is provided in Note 26,

16. Financial instruments
A derivative instrument is considered to be used for hedging purposes
when it alters the risk profile of an existing underlying exposure of
the Group in line with the Group’s risk management policies.

The Group is a party to derivative financial instruments (derivatives)
primarily to manage exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and Interest rates. As in previous years, it is the
Group's policy not 1o trade in financial instruments.

As part of exchange risk managament, the Group uses forward
currency contracts t¢ hedge significant US Dollar, Eurg and
Singapere Dollar commitments or anticipated transactions. Gains
and losses on these contracts are deferred and recognised in the
profit and loss account when the hedged transaction occurs. Gains
and losses arising from the translational hedges of foreign currency
investments are taken lo reserves.

It is also Group policy to use forward currency contracts for non-
sterfing purchase iransactions,

As part of interest rate risk management, bank borrowings are made in
relevant currencies at floating rates of interest. Receipts and payments
on interest rate instruments are recognised on an accruals basis.

This is elaborated on in Note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Segmental analysis

2001

Loss before tax

Pre-  Exceptional Net
Turnover  exceplional items Total assets
Em £m Em £m £m
(a) Business analysis {Note 4}
2001
Continuing operations
- Cape Industrial Services 215.1 11.0 - 11.0 37.8
- Cape Calsil 47.8 (5.3) (15.9} (21.2) 194
- Head Office - {3.1) - (3.1) 16.2
— Compensation for industrial disease - (3.7 (13.5) (17.2) (26.9)
Group 262.9 (1.1) {29.4) (30.5) 46.5
Joint ventures 3.7 Q.7 (2.5) (3.2) 0.1
266.6 (1.8} (31.9) (33.7) 46.6
Net interest/net borrowings (1.9) (26.1}
Other finance income 3.2 -
(32.4) 20.5
There are no significant inter-segment sales between business units 2000
{restated)
Loss before tax
Pre Exceptional Net
Turnover  exceptional items Total assets
{restated)
£m £m Em £m £m
(Note 4)
2000
Continuing operations
~ Cape Industrial Services 1859 11.3 - 113 347
- Cape Cailsil 50.0 3.9 (8.7) {12.6) 309
- Head Office - {4.2) - (4.2) (25.2)
- Compensation for industrial disease - {4.4) 7.0 114 (7.6}
Group 2359 (1.2) {15.7) (16.9) 83.2
Joint ventures 3z 0.5 - (0.5) 2.1
239.1 a7 (157} (17.4) 853
Net interest/net borrowings (1.6 (17.5)
Other finance income 4.0 -
(15.00 67.8
2001
Lass before tax
Pre-  Exceptional Net
Turnover exceptional items Total assets
£m £m £m £m £m
Geographical analysis by origin (Note 4)
2001
United Kingdom 213.7 (4.4 (29.4) (33.8) 322
Continental Eurcpe 22.1 1.5 - 1.5 6.8
Rest of the world 40.8 1.8 1.8 7.5
Inter-segment sales (13.7) - - -
Group 262.9 (1.1} (29.4) (30.5) 46.5
Rest of the world — joint ventures 3.7 (0.7} (2.5) (3.2 0.1
266.6 {1.8) (31.9) (33.7 46.6
Net interest/net borrowings (1.9) (26.1)
Other finance income 3.2 -
{32.4) 205
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

. Segmental analysis {continued)

2000

{restated)
Loss before tax

Net

Turnover Total assets
(restated)
£m £m £m
Geographical analysis by origin (continued)
2000
United Kingdom 201.4 (20.1 722
Continental Europe 196 0.6 56
Rest of the world 304 26 5.4
Inter-segment sales (15.5) - -
Group 2359 (16.9) 83.2
Rest of the world - joint ventures 3.2 (0.5} 2.1
2391 (17.4) 353
Net interest/net borrowings (1.6) (17.3)
Other finance income 4.0 -
(15.0) 67.8
2001 2000
Geographical analysis of turnover by market £m £m
United Kingdom 175.5 1526
Continental Eurcpe 36.2 40.6
Rest of the world — group 51.2 42.7
- joint ventures 3.7 3.2
266.6 239.1
. Operating loss
2001 2000
£m £m
Operating loss is stated after charging
Auditors’ remuneration of which the parent company was £90,000 (2000: £85,000} 0.3 03
MNon-audit fees payable to auditors - 0.2
Depreciation on owned tangible fixed assets 7.7 7.3
Dapreciation of tangible fixed assets under finance leases a3 04
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 8.8 0.3
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets - 0.1
Hire of plant and machinery 35 2.3
Other operating leases 0.8 06
Group operating loss
2000
{restated)
Exceptional Exceptional
items ltems Total
Analysis of Group operating loss £m £m £m
Group turnover - ~ 2359
Cost of sales (11.9) - (2157)
Gross profit (11.9) - 20.2
Other operating expenses (17.3) {157 (37.1)
Group opetating loss (29.4) (15.7) (16.9)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3. Group operating loss {continued)
2001 2000
(restated)
Pre- Exceptional Pre-  Exceptional
exceptional items Total  exceptional ltems Total
(b} Other operating expenses £m £m Em £m £m £m
Distribution costs 7.7 - 7.7 75 - 7.5
Administrative expenses 9.2 17.5 26.7 126 15.7 283
Resgarch and development expenditure 1.2 - 1.2 1.3 - 1.3
18.1 17.5 35.6 214 157 371
All operating profit is derived from continuing activities.
4. Operating exceptional items
2001
The exceptional items of £31.9 million comprise: £m
The release of the provision for legal costs relating Lo the defence of the action brought by
claimants in Scuth Africa now no longer required (see Note 17) (4.4)
Provision against the net present value of the conditional seitlement made
with the South African claimants on 21 December 2001 (see Note 2b) 17.9
Increase in the provision made in 2000 required for the rationalisation of the Cape Calsil operations 4.5
Impairment of the fixed assets and goodwill of Cape Calsil:
- Fixed asset write-offs 8.8
- Goodwill 3.5
12.3
Provision to write down stocks and debtars of Cape Calsit Division t¢ net realisable value 3.1
29.4
Impairment in joint venture 2.5
Total operating exceptional items 2001 31.9
2000
The exceptional items of £15.7 million comprise: £m £m
An estimate of the additional legal costs relating to the defence of the action brought by
claimants in South Africa 7.0
Costs relating to the rationalisation of the manufacturing capacity within the
Cape Calsil Division comprising:
— Asset write-offs 33
- Redundancy and closure costs 5.4
87
Total operating exceptional items 2000 15.7
5. Directors
2001 2000
{restated)
(@) Directors’ emoluments £000 £000
The aggregate emoluments of the Directors of the parent Company were:
Remuneration 473 541
Fees 60 49
Compensation for toss of office - 157
Payment to Rufland Trust PLC {See page 19) 208 250
Payment to Montpellier Group Pic (See page 19} 42 -
783 997
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Directors (continued)

Salaries 2001 2000

& Fees Bonus Benefits Total Totat

{restated)

Analysis of Directors’ emcluments £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
P Sellars {appoinied 31.10.01) - - - - -
P R Ainley 114 13 11 168 150
| & Maciellan 163 - a6 209 204
S S O'Connor 20 - - 20 20
J A Poof 40 - - 40 29
| R Widdowson 86 - 10 96 99
M R F Langdon {resigned 31,10.01) - - - - -
C B Dowling (resigned 31.16.01) - - - - -
P i Cartwright (alternate director for C B Dowling) {resigned 31.10.01) - - - - -
423 43 67 533 502

Year 2000 comparatives have been restated as these included notional company pension contributions which were included in error for
P R Ainley and | R Widdowson. The pension benefits are identified in a separate note below.

Rutiand Trust PLC received a paymtent of £208,000 covering the period 1 January 2001 to 31 October 2001 (2000 £250,000) for the
services of Mr M R F Langdon, Mr C B Dowling and Mr P § Cartwright. This payment is set out in the Services Agreement entered into by the
Company with Rutland Trust PLC on 19 June 1996 and subsequently revised on Sth March 1999. Mr M R F Langdon and Mr C B Dowling

are Directors of Rutland Trust PLC and thelr emoluments received from and their shareholdings in Rutland Trust PLC are disclosed in the
Annuat Report of that Company.

Montpellier Group Plc received a payment of £42,000 covering the period 31 Cctober 2001 to 31 December 2001 for the services of Mr P
Sellars. This payment is set out in the Services Agreement entered into by the Company with Montpellier Group Pic on 13 December 2001, Mr

P Sellars is a Director of Montpeliler Group Plc and his emoluments received from and his shareholdings in Montpellier Group Plc are
disclosed in the Annual Report of that Company.

No pensions are provided by Cape PLC for Mr P Sellars and the Non-Executive Directors.

Retirement benefils are accruing to three Directors (2000: three Directors) under a defined benefit scheme. Set out below are details of the
pension benefits earmed by each of the Executive Birectors during the year ended 31 December 2001

Increase in Accrued pension Increase in

accrued pension entitiement transfer value

earned in the year at year end for the year

£000 £QC0 £000

P R Ainley 2 &7 73
| D Maclellan 6 6 73
| R Widdaowsen 4 33 2h

The Increase in accrued pension earned during the year excludes any increase for inflation. The accrued pension entitlement shown is the
amount that would be paid each year on retirement at normal relirement age based on sarvice [o the end of the current year. The increase in
the transfer valug has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11, less Directors’
contributions. It does not represent a sum payable to individua! Directors and it, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration.

Directors’ interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors of the Company and thelr famiiies in the ordinary shares of the Company are set out below:

2001 2000
Number Number
Directors’ interests
P Sellars (appointed 31.10.01} - -
P R Ainley - -
f D Maclellan 15,000 15,000
S 8 O’Connor - -
1 A Pool 10,000 10,000
| R Widdowson - -

There were no changes in the Directors’ interests shown above between 31 December 2001 and 5 August 2002, being one month prior to the
date of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.
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(e)

(a}

(b}

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Directors {continued)

The share options held by Directors of the Company at 31 December 2001 are shown below.

Nurmoer

HNumber
Earliest at 1 Lapsed at 31
Date exercise Expiry Exercise January Granted Exercised unexercised December
Cape PLC share option schemes of grant date date price 2001 intheyear intheyear in the year 2001
P R Ainley 271998 272001 272008 £1535 111,500 - - - 111,500
1 D Macleltan 271998 27200: 272008 £1.535 200,000 - - - 200,000
| R Widdowson 271998 272001 272008 £1535 20,000 - - - 20,000
The middle market price of the shares on 31 December 2001 was 20.0p and the range during the twelve months ended 31 December 2001
was 12.0p to 25.5p.
Number Number
Earliest atl Lapsed at 31
Date exercise Expiry Exercise January Granted Exercised unexercised  December
Cape PLC savings-related share option schemes of grant date date price 2001  inthevear intheyear inthe year 2001
P R Ainley 5.4.1986 3152001 3011.2001 £1.67 2,809 - - 2,809 -
P R Ainley 751999 172004 1.1.200% £0.68 2,580 - - - 2,580
| D Maclellan 751899 172004 1.1.2005 £0.68 5,558 - - - 5,558
Employees
Average number of employees by business: 2001 2000
Industrial Services 5,673 5,075
Calsil 573 681
Head Cffice 20 17
6,266 5,773
Geographically:
United Kingdom 3,416 3,268
Continental Europe 419 390
Rest of the World 2,431 2,115
6,266 5,773
Employment costs, inciuding directors’ emoluments: 2001 2000
Note £m £m
Wages and salaries 122.2 109.3
Sacial security costs 11.6 10.9
Other pension costs 26 0.2 0.2
134.0 120.4
Net interest payable
2001 2000
£m £m
Interest receivable 0.2 0.3
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (2.1} 19
(1.9) (1.5

No interest was payable by instaiments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2001 2000
(restated)
£m £m
Taxation for the year comprises:
United Kingdom:
Corporation tax at 30.0% (2000: 30.0%) 0.1 038
Double tax reliet (0.7} (0.8)
(0.6) -
Deferred tax Q.7 (2.3}
Advance corporation tax written off - 1.7
Overseas taxes 0.8 0.8
0.9 0.2
Adjustments relating to earlier years:
United Kingdom:
Corporation tax (0.4) (Q.8)
Deferred tax 0.2) 0.1
0.3 (0.5)

The tax attributable to the 2001 exceptional items was a tax charge of £0.8 million being wholly related to deferred tax. The tax attributable to
the year 2000 exceptional items was a tax credit of £3.6 million being wholly related to deferred tax.

Dividends - equity shares

2001 2000
£m £m
interim ~ Novernber 2001 0.0p per share (2000: 2.0p per share) - 11

Earnings/(losses) per ordinary share

Earnings/{losses) per ordinary share are calculated by dividing losses (after tax and dividends on the 3Y/:% cumulative preference shares) of

£32.7 million {(2000: loss of £14.5 million) by 54,326,021 ordinary shares (2000: 54,326,021), being the weighted average number of such
shares in issue during the year,

2001 2000
(restated)
p per share  p per sharg

Basic and diluted losses per share {total operations) {60.0) (26.8)
Adiustments: Operating exceptional items

88.7 289
Taxation charge/(credit) on exceptional iterns 1.5 (6.5)

0.2 (4.4)

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share before exceptional items

Under FRS 14, potential ordinary shares should be treated as dilutive only when their conversion to ordinary shares would increase net losses

per share from continuing operations. As such, the deferred shares of 1,517,007 (2000 2,043, 77) are not dilutive and have been excluded
from the standard diluted losses per share calculation.

Supplementary basic and diluted eamings/{losses) per share have been calculated to exclude the effect of operating exceptional items. The adjusted
numbers have been provided in order that the effects of exceptional items on reported earnings can be fully appreciated. The adiustments

have been derived by dividing the exceptional items of £31.9 million (2000: £15.7 million} and tax charge of £0.8 million {2000: credit of £3.6
rillion) by the ardinary shares used in the basic calculations.

21 > Gape PLC annual report 2001

e




11.

(a)

(b}

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Fixed assets

Intangible assets (goodwill}

£m
Group
Cost at 1 January and 31 December 2001 0.1
Accumulated amortisation at 1 lanuary and 31 December 2001 0.1
Net book value at 1 January and 31 December -
Plant,
machinery,
Land and  fixtures and
Total buildings fittings
Tangible assets £Em £m Em
Group
Cost
At 1 January 2001 115.1 215 936
Exchange adjustments Q.1 Q.1 -
Additions at cost 10.9 06 10.3
Disposals (8.5) (1.1) (7.9)
At 31 December 2001 117.4 209 96.5
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2001 6g.4 50 64.4
Exchange adjustments (0.1 0. -
Provided during the year 2.0 0.4 76
Impairment review (Note 4} 8.8 - 88
Disposals (6.0} (1.1) (4.9)
At 31 December 2001 80.1 4.2 75.9
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2001 37.3 16.7 20.6
At 31 December 2000 45.7 165 29.2
Plant,
machinery,
Land and  fixtures and
Total buildings fittings
£m £m £m
Company
Cost
At 1 January 2001 15 1.1 0.4
Additions at cost - - -
Disposals (1.2} (1.1 Q.1
At 31 December 2001 03 - 0.3
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2001 14 1.2 03
Provided during the year - - -
Disposals (1.2) (1.1 (0.1
At 31 December 2001 0.2 - 0.2
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2001 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2000 0.1 - 0.1
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{ii)

{iii}

]

(v}

12

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Group
2001 2000
£m £m

The net book amount of land and buildings comprises:

Freehold 15.6 15.7

Long leasehold 0.6 0.7

Short lzasehold 0.5 0.1
16.7 16.5

The net book amount of group freehold land and buildings at 31 December 2001 includes £7.0 million (2000: £7.1 million) of

depreciable assets.

The total cost or valuation of land and buildings comprises:

At cost 9.4 88

At 1988 professignal valuation 115 il5s

At 1990 Directors’ valuation - 12
20.9 215

Historical cost tigures for land and buildings, i.e. the original cost of all land and buildings and related depreciation are:

Historical cost 11.1 11.0

Aggregate depreciation (5.1) (5.1

Net book amounts 6.0 59

Included in plant and machinery are the following assets which are held under finance leases:

Net book amount 0.8 05

Depreciation charge to date 2.1 18

.Fixed asset investments

Group undertakings

Total Shares Loans

Company £m £m £
Caost or valuation at 1 January 2001 839 389 450
Net {decrease)increase 4.9 383 43.2)
{Increaseldecrease in provision charged to profit and loss account (209 (30.6) 97
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investrments in subsidiary undertakings 5.2 5.2 -
Cost or valuation at 31 December 2001 63.3 51.8 11.5

Shares Loans
Included within the above is the following movement on provisions: Total £m £m
At 1 January 2001 (17.8) (2.9) (14.9)
(Increase)decreass in provision charged to profit and loss account {20.9) {30.5) 9.7
Provision at 31 December 2001 {(38.7) (33.5) (5.2}
If investments in shares in subsidiary undertakings had not been revalued they would have been included at the following amounts:

2001 2000

£m £m

Cost 66.7 28.4
Aggregate amounts provided 33.3 26
The principal subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2001, which are 2l included in the consolidation are shown on page 36.

2001 2000
Group Em £m
Interest in joint ventures
Share of gross assets 5.0 5.2
Share of gross liabitities 3.7) 3.1
Impairment provision (1.2) -

0.1 2.1
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12 Fixed asset investments {continued)

The Group has a 51% interest in both the Cape Modern and Cape Modern Pty Australia joint ventures registered in Australia for the
manuiacture and instaliation of commercial air-conditioning sysiemns and thermai insulation.

The Group has a 51% interest in the Cape Modern Pty joint venture incorporated in Australia for the manufacture and installation of commercial

air-conditioning systems and thermal insulation.

The Group has a 50% interest in the Cape Goldsun joint venture incorporated in Taiwan for the manufacture of calcium silicate boards.

The Group has a 51% interest in the Cape Perlite Systems joint venture incorporated in the United Kingdom for the manufacture of perlite

insulation products.

The Group has a 51% interest in Cape C.1.S.L. joint venture incorporated in Trinidad during 2001 for the provision of insuiation services.

Inciuded within the share of gross assets is the following goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Cape Goldson joint venture:

2001 2000
Group £m £m
At 1 January 0.1 0.1
Impairment provision (0.1) -
At 31 December - 0.1

13. Stocks

Group
2001 2000
£m £m
Contract work in progress 216 44.4
Less: progress payments received and receivable {15.6) (37.7)
Contract balances 6.0 67
Raw materials and consumables 3.6 4.2
Work in progress 1.3 1.6
Finished goods and goods for resale 3.0 52
7.9 11.0
139 17.7
Payments received on account in excess of the value of the work performed on the related contract are included within creditors (Note 15).
14. Debtors
Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
trestated) (restated)
£m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due within cne year:
Trade debtors 47.5 518 - -
Amounts recoverable on contracts 6.2 8.5 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 0.7 0.3
Otber debtors 2.8 24 0.2 Q.1
UK taxation - - 1.9 0.1
Prepayments and accrued income 4.4 4.4 - -
60.9 67.1 2.8 0.5
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Trade debtors - 04 - -
60.9 67.5 2.8 05
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Craditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
Note £m £m £m £m
Finance leases 16 c4 03 - -
Bank loans and overdrafts 30.9 333 31.5 279
Short-term borrowings 31.3 336 31.5 279
Other creditors
Payments received cn account 13 2.9 6.7 - —
Trade creditars 191 20,1 - -
Payroll and other taxes, including social security 5.1 6.6 - —~
UK taxation - 0.8 - -
QOverseas taxation 1.6 1.7 - -
Cther creditors 8.8 7.4 3.2 1.1
Accruals and deferred income 14.0 120 1.1 2.6
Government grants 0.3 0.4 - -
51.8 557 4.3 37
83.1 893 35.8 3le
The bank oans and overdrafts of £30.9 million (2000: £23.3 million) are secured over the UK assets of the Group.
16. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
Nete £m £m £m £m
Long-term borrowings
Finance leases 0.2 G4 - -
Arnounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings - - 9.3 13.4
0.2 0.4 9.3 13.4
Group
2001 2000
£ £m
The finance lease rentals fall due as follows:
Within one year 15 0.4 0.3
Between one and two years 0.2 0.3
Between two and five years Q.1 02
Total rentals due 0.7 08
Less: finance charges allocated to future periods (0.1) (G.1)
0.6 0.7
The aggregate of secured finance leases is shown as:
Amounts falling due within one year 15 0.4 03
Amounts falling due between one and twe years 0.2 0.4
0.6 0.7

Finance leases are at the weighted average interest rate of 9.2% (2000

. 11.6%) over an average period 1o termination of 1.0 vears {(2000: 1.2 years).

e
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

17.Provisions for liabilities and charges

South Compensation
Africa Major for industrial Deferred Cther
Total  settlement litigation disease taxation provisions
(il (i) 0} (iv}
£m £ £m £m £m £m
Group

At 1 January 2001 (restated} 26.1 - 83 11.4 (1.5} 7.9
Charge/(release) to profit and loss account 187 179 (4.4) 4.2 0.5 05
Applications (13.5) - (3.5) (3.5 - (6.5)
At 31 December 2001 31.3 179 c4 12.1 (1.0) lg

Company
At 1 January 2001 (restated) 6.3 - 83 - (2.2) 0.2
Chargef{release) to profit and 1oss account 183 179 {4.4) - 18 -
Applications (3.5) - (3.5 - ~ -
At 31 December 2001 18.1 17.9 4.4 - (0.4) 0.2

(i} The net charge tc profit for the compensation for industrial disease in the year is £3.7 million (2000: £4.4 miliion) after £0.5 million {2000:

£1.1 million} of insurance recoveries. The provision for industrial disease represents the expected costs of settling notified claims. It is
anficipated that most of these claims will be paid in the next two years, Insurance recoveries of £3.1 million (2000: £3.6 million) are
receivable against certain of these claims and are included in the Balance Sheet under “prepayments and accrued income”. The basis for
the provision and the contingent liability in respect of future settlements is described in Note 25 (i).

(i) With the introduction of the South Africa settlement described below, it has been estimated that £4.4 million of the provision made for

defence costs in the year 2000 is no ionger required. The remaining provision will te utiised in 2002.

(i) The provision of £17.9 million for the South Africa settlement represents the present day value of the £20.0 million payable under the terms

agreed and £0.4 million for legal costs in respect of forming the settlement. Discussions in pursuit of a settlement confinued between Cape PLCs
representatives and those of the claimants in the South African Litigation throughout the late autumn of 2001 and culminated in an agreement
for the South African Settlement being signed on 21 December 2001, The terms of the Seftlement Agreement are that Cape will pay £20 million
over 10 years to a trust set up in South Africa o compensate not only those claimants who are parties to the South African Litigation but alsa
future sufferers from asbestos related diseases who can prove that their disease is likely to have resulted from the Group's operaticns in South
Africa. Of the £20 million, £10 mitiion was due to be paid by 30 June 2002 and annual payments ¢f £1 miliion for 10 years thereafter. In
addition, a contribution of £2.25 million will be paid in respect of the legal costs of the claimants. The South African government has agreed not
tc seek to recover from the Group the costs of environmental remediation arising from the Group's former mining activities in South Africa,

It was originally intended that a South African trust would be farmed and the South African Settlement completed by 30 June 2002. Qwing to

delays in the restructuring of the Group, the date for completion of the South African Settlernent has been extended by agreement and, if
necessary, further extensions may be negofiated.

(iv) Other provisicns relate mainly to the amount expected to be incurred in respect of the decision made in 2000 to rationalise the manufacturing

capacity in Cape Calsil. The remaining provision relates 1o the costs that are outstanding at 31 Becember 2001, It is anticipated that this

provision will be utilised in 2002.

18. Share capital

2001 2000
{a) Authorised £m £m
Equity:
73,663,439 ordinary shares of 25p each (2000; 73,663,432 ordinary shares of 25p each} 18.4 184
Non-equily:
15,067 8.4% cumulative preference shares of £1 each (2000: 15,067} - -
250,000 3% cumulative preference shares of £1 each {2000: 250,000) Q.3 03
431,906,031 deferred shares of 1p each (2000: 431,806,031) 4.3 4.3
4.6 46
23.0 230
(b) Called up, fully paid and allotted
Equity:
54,326,021 ordinary shares of 25p each (2000: 54,326,021} 136 136
Mon-eguity:
250,000 34:% cumulative preference shares of £1 each (2000: 250,000) 0.3 0.3
431,906,031 deferred shares of 1p each {2000: 431,906,031} 4.3 43
4.6 46
18.2 182
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18.

{c)

(d}

(e)

19.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Share capital {continued)

Share options

The following share options in respect of ordinary shares were outstanding at 31 December 2001,

Savings related share option scherme

Date of  Number of
grant shares
7495 45422
5496 32,633
7599  §9160
7.589 322492

253,470 options lapsed during the year. Al opticns must be exercised within six months of the above dates,

Exacutive share option scheme

273,500 options lapsed during the year

3% Cumulative preference shares

54.96
2798

20.10.98

197,000
807,500
12,500

Price

206p
167p

68p

167p
153.5p

Date of exercise

31.5.02

31,501 or 31.6.03

1.7.02
1.7.04

5.4.99 t0 5.4.06
2701102708
112.5p 20.10.01 to 20.10.08

Dividend rights: Fixed cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 3'2% per annum payable half yearly in arrears on 31 March and 30 September.

Redemption of shares: The shares have no redemption entitlement.

Winding up: On a winding up the holders have priority before all other classes of share 10 receive repayment of capital plus all arrears of dividend.

Voting rights: The holders have no voting rights uniess the dividend is in arrears by six manths or more.

Deferred shares

Dividend rights, redemption of shares and voting rights: The holders have ng dividend rights, no redemption entittement and ng voting rights.

Winding up: On a winding up the holders are entitled to repayment of capital only after ordinary shareholders have received £100 for each ordinary share.

Reserves
Share Profit
premium  Revaluation and ioss
Total account reserve account
£m £m £m £m
Group
At 1 January 2001 20.7 16 113 7.8
Prior year adjustment — FRS 17 289 - - 289
At 1 January 2001 as restated 496 16 11.3 36.7
Reversal of goodwill previously written off to reserves 35 - - 35
Transfer from revaluation reserye - - 0.8} 08
Loss for the year (32.7) - - (32.7)
Actuariat 10ss ¢n pension scheme {25.2) - - (25.2)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension assets 7.1 - - 7.1
At 31 December 2001 2.3 1.6 10.7 (10.0}
Company
At 1 January 2001 20.7 16 13.3 5.8
Prior year adjusiment ~ FRS 17 2859 - - 285
ALl January 2001 as restated 49,6 16 133 347
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investments in subsidiary undertakings 5.2 - 5.2 -
Loss for the year (34.4) - - (34.4)
Actuarial l1oss on pension scheme (25.2) - - (252}
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension assets 7.1 - - 7.1
At 31 December 2001 2.3 1.6 18.5 (17.8)

L
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20.

(@

{b)

(c}

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Reserves {continued)

2001 2600
(restated)
£m £m

Profit and loss reserves comprise:
Profit and loss account excluding pensicn asset (27.5) 2.6
Pension reserve 17.5 241
Profit and loss reserve (10.0} 36.7

The cumuiative goodwill charged 1o reserves at 31 December 2001 was £9.2 million (2000: £12.7 million}. This goodwill has been eliminated
as a matter of accounting policy. It would be charged or credited in the Profit and Loss Account on subsequent disposal of the business to
which it relates, or as a result of a change in accounting policy in 2001, if It has been unimpaired. As a result of this change in accounting
palicy, £3.5 million has been charged {o the Profit and Loss Account during the year due {0 impairment

Included in the Group Profit and Loss Account is & movement of £E0.0 milion (2000: deficit of £G.7 million) in relation to foreign currency borrowings.

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 no separate Profit and Loss Account is presented for the Company. Of the Group loss
for the year, a loss of £34.4 million {2000: loss of £4.3 miliion) is dealt with in the Financial Statements of the Company.

The prior year adjustment relates to the imptementation of FRS 17. The adoption of FRS 17 has resulted in an increase in staff costs by £3.2 miilion
(2000 £4.2 million} and cther finance income of £3.2 million (2000: £4.0 million), a decrease in the tax charge of £0.4 million {2000: £0.7 millicn), a
decrease in the loss for the year by £0.4 million {2000: £0.5 million} and an increase in recognised losses by £11.3 million (2000: increase of £6.0 million).

The prior year adjustment for FRS 17 comprises:

£m
Recognition of pension asset 34.1
Elimination of SSAP 24 prepayment {7.5)
Eiimination of SSAP 24 deferred tax on prepayment 23
289
Consolidated cash flow statement

2001 2000
{restated)
Reconciliation of operating foss to net operating cash flow from operating activities £m £m
Cnerating loss (33.7) {174}
Joint ventures 0.7 0.5
Depreciation charge on fixed assets 8.0 7.7
Impairment of fixed assets 8.8 3.3

Impairment of joint venture 2.5
Impairment of goodwill previously written off to reserves 35 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2.1 -
Difference between penston charge and cash contributions 1.7 18
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 4.0 {0.9)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 4.4 (7.00
(Decreaselincrease in creditors {4.2) 8.2
Increase in provisions {excluding deferred tax) 11.8 86
Decrease/{increase) in cther provisions (5.3) 3z
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4.3 80

As well as due to the effects of FRS 17, the year 2000 figures have been restated to rezllocate “operating exceptional provisions' of £7.4 million
to ather more appropriate cash flow headings within this note, and also to reflect the reclassification of £0.9 million of financing o net cash

inflow from operating activities.

2001 2000

Analysis of tax paid Em £m
UK corporation tax 1.7 (6.3}
Overseas tax (2.3) (0.4)
(0.6} (0.7}

Other Atl

Cash Non-cash exchange January

flow changes  movement 2001

Reconciliation of movement in net debt Note £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand (11.2) -~ G.1 165
Short term borrowings 15 272 - 02 (32.3)
Finance leases 15&16 0.4 (0.3) - (0.7)
(8.6} (0.3} 03 (17.5)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

20. Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

{d)

21.

(a)

(b}

Cash flow relating to exceptional items and major non-cash transaction

Specific items within the operating casn flows relate to the operating exceptional items shawn in Note 4. Of the amount of £28.9 million, £0.5

million relates to an cutflow for the rationalisation of the Cape Calsil operations and the remainder results in a non-cash transaction.

Financial instruments

In accordance with the requirements of FRS 13 the following informaticn is given to provide a clear understanding of the Group's treasury

position. As allowed under the Standard, other than currency risk disclosures, certain short term debtors, creditors and provisions have been

excluded from the figures.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity, currency and interest rate risk, and its use of forward currency contracts in that process, is
described in the accounting policies on page 14 and 15.

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise cash and long term debtors. These earn interest at 2 floating rate which is receivable at ratas between

0.4% and 0.1% below the bank base rate. (2000: between 0.4% and 0.1% below the bank base rate).

2001, 2000

£m £m

Analysis of financial assets by major currency at 31 December 2001:

UK Slerling 0.2 Q4
Netherlands Guilder - 36
Deutschmark - 4.4
Furo 1.2 -
United States Dotlar 1.1 39
Singapore Dollar 0.4 0.8
Saudi Arabian Riyals - 05
Qatar Riyals 0.2 0.2
Bzhrain Dinars 0.1 06
Malaysian Ringgits 1.0 -
Philippine Peso a1l 03
UAE Dirhamns 0.4 03
Other currencies 0.7 19

5.4 168

Included in the year 2000 above is £0.4 million relating to long-term debtors. These were at & fixed rate of interest of 10% per annum.

Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities

The Group's financial liatilities comprise pank loans, overdrafts, finance leases, non-equity iNterests and certain provisions for liabilities. All
bank overdrafts are at a floating interest rate of 1.5% {2000: 1.0%) over bank base rate and uncommitted borrowings at a floating interest rate

of 1.5% (2000: 0.4%) over LIBOR.

The weighted avarage interest rate for the fixed rate finance l2ases is disclosed in Note 16. The non-equity interests comprise the deferred shares

and 3'%:% cumulative preference shares which have no redemption entitlement other than on a winding up of the Company.

2001 2000
£m £m

Analysis of financial habilities by major currency at 31 December

£ Sterling

- financial liabilities 14.3 11.3
~ financial leases 0.6 Q.7
- non-equity interests 4.6 4.6
Euro 6.6 91
United States Dollar 7.3 7.2
Singapore Dollar 2.7 3.5
Netherlands Guilder - 20
Indian Rupees - 0.2
36.1 86

In addition to the above, the Group’s provision of £17.9 million (2000: £nil} for the South African settliement (Note 17} meets the definition of financial

liabilities. This liabifity is considered to be a 4.5% per annum fioating rate financial liability. This is because, in establishing the provisions,

the cash flows have been discountad at a rate of 4.5% per annum and the discount rate will be re-appraised at each reporting date 1o ensure

that it reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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—

{c

G}

(e}

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Financial instruments {continued)

Maturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s financial iabilities, other than short-term trade creditors and accruals and the non-

redemable non-equity interests at 31 December was as follows.

2001 Oher
Bank loans Finance financial
and overdrafts leases liabilities 2001
£m £m £m frn
In one year or less, or on demand 309 04 102 41.5
In more than one year but not more
than two years - 0.2 09 1.1
in more than twe years but not more
than five years - - 26 2.6
In more than five years - - 42 4.2
208 06 178 49.4
2000 Other
Bank loans Finance financial
and overdrafts leases liabilities 2000
£m £m £m £m
tn one year or less, or on demand 333 03 - 336
In more than one year but not more
than two years ~ 04 - 0.4
In more than two years but not more
than five years - - - -
In more than five years - - - -
333 Q.7 - 340

Other financial liabilities includes the pravisions for the South African settlement (Note 17}

Borrowing facilities

The Group has no commitied undrawn facilities as a 31 December 2001 (2000: nil).
The Group has total uncommitted facilities of £3%.7 millign (2000: £40.2 million), all of which are floating rate and all of which mature within one year.

CUTI‘EDCY exposures

The table below shows the extent to which Group companies have monetary asseis and liabitities in currencigs cther than their locat currency. Foreign
exchange differences on re-translation of these assets and liabilities are taken to the Profit and Loss Account of the Group Companies and the Group.

2001

Functional currency of group operation:

UK Sterling

UAE Dirhams
Malaysian Ringgits
Azerbaijan Marnet
Kazakhstan Tenge
Phillinine Pesos
Qatar Riyals

Lsg Sing%

o
=

£m

Eurg

£m

Other
Currencies
£nt

Total

£m

Total

[l Rekoloyel o
[T PR AR e X 4
|

wILocoomWwh
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2000

Functional currency of group operation:

UK Sterling

UAE Dirhams
Azerbaijan Manet
Kazakhstan Tenge
Qatar Riyals

Total
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MNotes to the Financial Statements continued

21. Financial instruments (continued)

{f} Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
In the Board's opinion, the carrying value of all financial assets/(liabilities) represents the ™air value” of such assets and liabilities.

Summary of methods and assumptions

Forward foreign currency contracts Fair value is based on the comparison of the foreign currency
contract rate to the year end closing rate

The value quoted of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts

are the actual balances owing.

The value quoted of long-term loans are the actual balances owing,

Short-term deposits and borrowings
Long-term borrowings

(g} Hedges

As explained in the accounting policies on pages 14 and 15, the Group’s policy is to hedge the following exposures;
Currency risk — using forward currency contracts for currency exposures on next year's expected sales.

The table below shows the extent to which the Group has off-balance sheet (unrecognised) and on-balance sheet (deferred) gains and losses in
raspect of financial instruments used as hedges at the beginning and end of the vear. It alse shows the amount of such gains and losses which

have been included in the profit and loss account for the year and those gains and losses which are expected to be included in next year's or
later profit and loss accounts.

All the gains and losses on the hedging instruments are expected o be matched by losses and gains on the hedged transactions or positions.
Such gains and losses are treated as deferred for the purpose of the table below:

Unrecognised Deferred
Total net Total net
Gains Losses  gainsftosses Gains Logses  gains/flosses
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Gains and losses on hedges
at 1 January 2001 - (0.2} (0.2) - - ~
Arising in previous years - - - - - -
Included in 2001 income - - - - - -
Gains and losses not
included in 2001 income
Arising before 1 January 2000 - - - - - -
Arising in 2000 - - - - - -
Gains and losses on hedges
at 31 December 2001 0.1 - 0.1 - - -

The year 2000 loss has not been realised since the contract matured at the contract rate. The same applies 1o the position at 31 December 2001,

{k) Financial instruments held for trading purposes

The Group does not trade in financial instruments.

22, Deferred taxation

2001 Movement 2000
(restated)
Group Em £m £m

The provision for deferred taxation comprises:
Excess of the book values of assets including finance leases qualifying for taxation allowances over their
written down vaiues for taxation purposes - (1.8}
Disposal of properties

18
0.1 - 0.1
Other timing differences (1.1} 23 (34

)
Provision for deferred taxation

{1.0) 0.5 {1.59)
Deferred tax liability on pensicn asset 7.5 (7.1) 146

6.5 (6.6) 131

The Group has no potential liability for unprovided deferred taxation arising on timing differences between the treatment of items for accounts
and taxation purposes at 31 December 2001 {2000: £nil).

Tax relief is available in respect of trading losses carried forward amounting to approximately £6.0 million (2000; £4.8 million). The losses
carried forward are in certain subsidiary undertakings and can only be utilised against future profits of those undertakings. The Group also has
a deferrad tax asset in respect of other timing differences amounting to approximately £1.3 million which is not accounted for in the provision
for deferred taxation due to the uncertainty as to when these timing differences will reverse.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

22.Deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation has not been provided in the event of the distribution of the unappropriated profits or reserves of certain overseas subsidiary
undertakings as the Group doss not intend 1o make such distributions.

Advance corporation tax written off to date amounts to £1.7 million {2000: £1.7 million) and is available for offset against future United Kingdom

corporation tax liabilities subiect to certain conditions being met. The future benefit of advance corporation tax has not been acounted for in
the provision for deferred taxation as its recoverability is uncertain.

2001  Movement 2000
(restated)
Company £m £m £m
The provision for deferred taxation comprises:
Other timing differences (0.4) 138 (2.2)
Deferred tax hability on pension asset 7.5 {7.1) 146
7.1 5.3 12.4
23. Capital commitments
Group
2001 2000
£m £m
Capital expendiiure authorised but not provided for in these accounts against which orders have been placed 0.2 0.3
24. Commitments under operating leases
Group
2001 2000
Land and buildings £m £m
Annual commitments under operating leases expiring:
Within one year 0.2 03
Between one year and five years 0.3 0.4
After five years 0.1 -
0.6 0.7
Other
Annual commitments under operating leases expiring:
Within cne year 0.8 0.7
Between one year and five years 0.4 0.9
1.2 16

25. Contingent liabilities

(i} There is a history of industrial disease claims being lodged for a number of years in the United Kingdom. Where the Group has determined

that it is approsriate to do 50, settlement has heen made. Based on this experience, it is likely thal similar claims will continue @ be received
for the foreseeable future. However, there is significant uncertainty over the number, nature, timing and validity of such future cfaims. This is
as a result of, inier alia, uncertainties concerning the popuiation that may have been exposed te asbestos and that may develop asbestcs
related diseases, the nature and timing of the diseases that may develop, the impact of other factors which might have contributed to the
claimant's condition, changes in the legal environment and to the typical cost of settlement. These factors affect considerations of liakility and
the gquantum of settiement, Experience o date is that some of these claims wilt be at least partially covered by insurance policies, but the
amount of the cover will not be known until the details of the claims are available. As a result of these uncertainties, the amount of the Group's
obligaticn cannct be measured with sufficient reliability. Accordingly, the Group provides in the Profit and Loss Account each year for the
estimated liahility in respect of industrial disease claims lodged and outstanding at the year-end.

if it were possible to assess reliably the present value of amounis that might be paid in future settferments such that this was provided in the
Balance Sheet, there would be a materially adverse effect on the Group's financial position. There is great uncertainty over the net present

value of the future claim settlements which couid occur in excess of twenty years, but they are likely to exceed the amount of the net assets
included in the current Group Balance Sheet.

Based on the recent history of settlernents, the Directors anticipate that future settiements can be made from the future cash flows generated

by the trading operations of the Group. Should the future pattern as regards fiming and quantum prove inagcurate, there could be a material
adverse effect on the Group's financial position,

32 = Gape PLG annual report 2001




Notes to the Financial Statements continued

25. Contingent labilities {continued}

(ii) The Company is the defendant in proceadings brought by some 7,500 South African residents who claim that they suffered injury as the result of

mining activities in South Africa undertaken by former subsidiaries of Cape PLC which were sold in 1979. Following a decisian of the House of Lords
in July 2000, the claimants were aliowed to pursue their action in the English courts and a High Court judge was appointed to manage the case.

Following discussion with the claimants representatives, agreement to stay these proceedings was reached in December 2001. Without any admission
of liabifity, and subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, including obtaining the consent of shareholders of Cape PLC and of the South
African government not to assist future claims against Cape, a trust fund will be established to compensate not only claimants in the current
proceedings but also future applicants to the trust who satisfacterily establish both exposure to asbestos as the result of the activities of the
Company's former subsidiaries and that they have an asbestos related disease.

It is anticipated that, provided the conditions are satisfied, the trust will consist of an initial payment of £10 miilion and annual payments of £1
million for 10 years thereafter. It was criginally intended that a South African Trust would be formed and the settlement compieted by 30 June

2002. Owing to delays in the restructuring, the date for comptetion of the South African Settlernent has been extended by agreement and, if
necessary, furthar extensions may be negoticted.

If the conditions are not satisfied, the stay will be lifted and the litigation will resume. No firm date for a trial of the substantive case has been
fixed, but it cannot be before September 2002,

On the assumption that the litigation is settled and that a trust is established, an operating exceptional charge of £17.9 million has been made
in this year's accounts, representing the net present value of the Company’s contingent obligation to make payments to the South African trust
fund. The balance of the provision for the estimated costs of defending the action (E4.4 million) has been released.

if there is no seitiement and the litigation resumes, the Directors believe that, if the case is decided in favour of the claimants, there may be a
materially adverse effect on the Group’s financial position disclosed in these financial statements, It is not possible to provide a reliable
estimate of the amount or range of potential 1oss that ceuld result from an unfavourable oulcome.

(i) Certain companies in the group continue o be named, along with several asbestos fibre and asbestos product suppliers, as defendants in a significant

number of legal acticns in North America. The plaintiffs in such actions are claiming substantial damages as a result of the use of these products.
The Company has received legal advice in the UK that provided no defence is mounied or response made abroad, and 50 long as the normat
rules governing corporate individuality apply, a default judgement obtained in North America against Companies within the Group which are
not present in North America, wouid not be enforceable in the UK. Accordingly, Companies within the Grgup and who are not present in North
America do not defend these actions. If any of these plaintiffs in North America, who obtain default judgement against a Group Company,
sought to enforce it in the UK courts, such attermpt would be tikely to fait. The Directors believe, in the light of legal advice they have received,
that the above-mentioned matters are unlikely to have a material effect on the Group's financial position.

(iv) The parent Company has contingent liabilities amounting to £4.¢ million (2000: £5.6 million) in respect of bank and other guarantees and

26,

indemnities, the majority on beha¥ of subsidiary undertakings, 'n addition, toth the Company and its subsidiary undertakings have given
guarantees and performance bonds of a normal trading nature.

Pensions

The Group operates two major pension schemes in the UK, one is of the defined benefit type and the cther of the defined contribution type. The
assets of both schemes are held in trustee administered funds. The latest valuation of the defined benefit scheme was assassed by independent
qualified actuaries as at 6 April 2001, using the projected unit meathod. The main actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation were that over
the Jong term the annual investrment return would be 2.0% higher than general earnings inflation and 2.75% higher than the annual increase in
present and future pensions. The valuation showad that the defined benefit scheme had a market value of £121.0 million and was 151% funded.

The pension expense in the period for the defined contribution pension scheme of £0.2 million (2000: £0.2 millicn) egualled the Group
contributions to the scheme. Pensions for employees of cverseas companies are provided in accordance with local requirements and praclices.

The Company has Tully adopted the arrangements of FRS 17. As a result the most recent full actuarial valuations referred 1o ahbove were
updated to 31 December 2001 and adjusted by qualified independent actuaries for the assumptions used as specified below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Pensions {(continued)
As at 31 December 2001 2000 1999
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries 350% 360% 3.60%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 250%  260% 2.60%
Discount rate 550%  6.00% 6.00%
tnflation assumption 2.50% 2.60% 2.60%
Funded status and expected return on assets
The assets in the schemes and the expected annual rate of return {net of investment management expenses)
as at 31 December were as follows:
2001 2000 1999
% p.a. £m % p.a. £m % p.a. £m
Equities 7.50% 58.8  7.50% 722 7.50% 79.7
Bonds 498% 486  468% 512  5.09% 491
Tola) market vatue of assals 107.4 1234 128.8
Present value of scheme liabilities (82.4) (74.7) (74.0)
Surplus in the schemes 250 48.7 54.8
Related deferred tax liability (see Note 22) (7.5} (14.8) (16.6)
Net pension asset 175 34.1 38.2
Analysis of amount charged to operating profit in respect of defined benefit scheme:
2001 2000
Year to 31 December £m £m
Current service cost 1.7 1.8
Past service cost - _
Total operating charge 1.7 1.8
Analysis of amount credited to other finance income
2001 2000
Year to 31 December £m £m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 7.6 83
Interest on pension scheme liapilities {4.4) {4.3)
Net return 3.2 4.0
2001 2000
Analysis of amount in statement of total recognised gains and losses £m £m
Actual return less expecled return on pension scheme assets (20.3) (8.3)
Experience gain/{loss) arising on the scheme liabilities - -
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities {4.9) -
Actuarial toss in statement of total recognised gains and losses (25.2) (8.3}
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

26. Pensions (continued)

2001 2000
Movement in surplus during the year £m £m
Surplus in the scheme at the beginning of the year 487 54.8
Mavement in the year
Service cost (1.7} (1.8}
Contributions - -
Other finance income 3.2 4.0
Actuarial loss (25.2) {8.3)
Surplus in the scheme at the end of the year 25.0 48.7

2001 2000
History of experience gains and losses £m £m
Difference between the actual and expected return on scheme assets:
Amount (20.3) (8.3)
Percentage of scheme assets (19%) (7%}
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
Amount - -
Percentage of scheme liabilities 0% 0%
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount {25.2) (8.3)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (31%) (11%)

The valuation at 31 December 2001 showed a decrease in the surplus from £48.7 million to £25.0 million. As a result of the current surplus,
it was agreed with the actuaries and trustees of the pension schieme that no contributions are 10 be paid for the foreseeabie future.

The defined benefit scheme was closed to new members during the period. As a result, under the projected unit method of valuation, the
current service cost will increase as the meambers of the scheme approach retirement.

27.Related party transactions

The Group's related party transactions during 2001, as defined by

2001 2000
FRS 8, are summarised below: £m £m
Management service charges to the Group by Rutland Trust PLC to 30 October 2001 0.2 03
Managernent service charges to the Group by Montpellier Group Pic from 31 October 2001 & iy 0.1 -

iy Since 31 Oclober 2001 Montpelier Group Plc has owned 29.9% of the ordinary share capital of Caps PLC. Montpetier Group Plc orovided
Mr P Selfars as the Chairman from 31 October 2001 and has provided property services and financial advice. See Note 5(b).

(i} Montpellier Group Plc were paid paid £42,000 for services provided during the year. Property fees of £120,000 were incurred from

Cheltenham Land Company Limited, a subsidiary of Montpellier Group Ple,

28. Subsequent events

(iY The Company announced on 22 July 2002 that it has exchanged contracts for the sale of the major part of its manufacturing division,
Cape Calsil to Promat Glasgow Limited {("Promat”) & subsidiary of Promat International NV, a part of the Belgian Etex group.

The sale is conditional amongst other things, on receiving merger clearance in the UK and other European countries and on the consent
of Cape’s shargholders. The Company has also given certain warranties and indemnities. The consideration for the sale is £9.2 miilion,
subject te an adjustment by reference to the value of certain assets and to the extent that any appartion needs to be made of prepayments
and creditors. On completion of the sale, £1.5 millicn of the consideration will be placed in a retention account o be releasad cver a six
month period according Lo the amount of preduct made available t© Promat during the six month transitional period after compietion. £1.3
million will be placed in a trust account which could remain open until 2052 and is to be used sclely to meet possibie future industrial
disease claims from empioyees who transfer to Promat as part of the sgle. Cape could be gbliged te pay up to a further £0.8 million of the
consideration it will receive at completion into the trust account in the event that employees from the Uxbridge site transfer to Promat. The
remaining proceeds from the sale will be used to repay bank debt. The book value of the net assets of Cape Calsit at 31 December 2001

15 £19.4 million of which £9.9 million have been sold and the remaining £38.5 million will be retained by the Company for subsequent
disposal. Further financial information on Cane Catsil is given in Note 1(a).

{iiy The Company received an indicative offer of new banking facilities, details of which are given in Note 2 of the Accounting Policies.

{iii) Subsequent to 31 December 2001, the Group decided to dispose of its shareholding in the Cape Goldsun joint venture {o Goldsun

Development & Construction Co Lid for a nominal value. There is no profit or loss arising on disposal as the Group share of the net assets
was fully written down at the year end.
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Principal Subsidiary Undertakings
as at 31st December 2001

Cape Industrial Services
Wakefield

Managing Directar: Paul Ainlay
Telephone 44(0} 1924 871000

The provision of specialised services to the contracting industries in
the UK and internationally. Industrial insulation, scaffolding, painting,
fire protection, refraciory and asbestos removal services, hire and
séle of scaffolding equipment and factoring insulation products.

Cape Industrial Services Limited*
Wakefield

Co-ordination of industrial services activities in the UK.

St. Albans
Co-ordination of international industrial services activities.

Cape East Private Limited*
Singapore

Co-ordination of industrial services activities in the Asia Pacific
region.

Cleton Insulation BY*
Vlzardingen, The Netherlands
Co-crdination of industrial services activities in Continental Europe.

Cape East EC*
Bahrain

Co-ordination of industrial services activities in the Middle East.

Cape Calsil
Uxbridge

Managing Director: lan Maclellan
Telephone 44(0) 1895 463000

Manufacture and sunply of high performance products for use in
building, construction and general industry.

Cape Calsil Systems Limited*
Uxbridge, Glasgow, Caerphilly
Manufacture and supply of non-combustible fire protection and high

performance boards, caicium silicate industriai and insulation
products.

Cape Asia Pacific Private Limited*
Singapore
Co-ordination of marketing and sales in the Asia Pacific region.

Cape Calsil Belgium SPRL*
Mechelen, Beigium
Marketing and sales in Belgium.

Cape Calsil France SA*
Paris, France
Marketing and sales in France and Spain.

Cape Calsil Deutschland GmbH*
Cologne, Germany
Marketing and sales in Germany.

1. The subsidiary undertakings listed are those whose results, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the profit or assets of the
Group. The subsidiary undertakings operate principally in the countries in which they are incorporated.

2. The shareholdings in subsidiary undertakings are in ordinary shares which are held by Cape PLC except for those marked with an
asterisk whose shares are held by subsidiaries,

3.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the one hundred and ninth Annuat
General Meaeting of Cape PLC (the ‘Company’) will be held at Iver
Lane, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 2JQ on 8 October 2002 at 12 noon
when the following business will be considered:

Resolution 1

To receive the audited accounts and the reports of the Directors and
the Auditors thereon for the year ended 31 Decermber 2001.

Resolution 2

To re-appeint Mr P Seliars, who having been appointed by the
Directors since the last Annual General Meeting retires at the end of
this meeting, as a Direcior of the Company.

Resolution 3

To re-appoint Mr | R Widdowson, who retires by rotation, as a
Director of the Company.

Resoluticn 4

To re-appoint Mr P R Ainley, who retires by rotation, as a Director of
the Company.

Resolution 5

To re-appoint PricewaterhiouseCoopers as auditors of the Company to
hold office untit the conclusion of the next general meeting &t which
accounts are laid before the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

To propose the following Resolutions as special resolutions:

Resolution &

That the Directors be empowered, pursuant 1o $.95(1) of the
Companies Act 1985, to allot equity securities {within the meaning of
$.94(2) of the Companies Act 1985) of the Company pursuant 1o the
authority under s.80 of the Companies Act 1985 conferred by an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15 May 2000 (the
's.80 Authority’) as if 5.83(1) of that Act did not apply to such
allotment, provided that such power shall be limited:

(1} to the aliotment of equity securities in connection with a rights
issue in favour of the holders of ordinary shares where the equity
securities attributable to the interests of such shareholders are
proportionate {(as nearly as may be) to the respective numbers of
ordinary shares held by them subiect only to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or
expedient 1o deal with fractional entitiements, legal or practical
problems arising in any overseas territory or by virtue of shares
being represented by depository receipts, the requiraments of

any regulatory body or stock exchange, or any other matter
whatsoever; and
(i) tothe allotment {ctherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (i)
abave} of equity securities to any persen up to an aggregate
nominal vafue of £679,075 (representing 5% of the issued
ordinary share capital at 26 July 2002

Such power shall expire at the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2003 or, if earlier, the
expiry of the 5.80 Authority, except that the Directors shall be
entitled to make at any fime prior to the expiry of the power
hereby conferred any offer or agreement which would or might
require equity securities to be allolted after the expiry of such
power and the directors may allct equity securities in pursuance

of such an offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby
had not expired.

Resolution 7
That the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised to
make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 163(3} of the

Companies Act 1985) of ordinary shares of 25p each of the Company
provided that:

{i) the maximum number of ordinary shares hereby authorised to
be acquired is 8,140,000,

the minimum price which may be paid for any such share is 25p;

the maximum price which may be paid for any such share is an
amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an ordinary share in the Company as derived from
the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
husiness days immediately preceding the day on which such
share is contracted to be purchased;

(i}
{iii)

(iv)

{(v) the Company may make a contract to purchase its ordinary
shares under the authority herehy conferred prior to the expiry of
such authority, which contract will or may be executed wholly or
partly after the expiry of such authority, and may purchase its
ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract.

the authority hereby conferred shall expire on 7 October 2003;

By Order of the Board

S H Smith
Secretary
5 September 2002

Registered Office:
lver Lane

Uxbridge

Middlesex

UBa 2JQ

Registared in England:
Number 40203

1. This notice is sent for information only to the holders of the 3%
cumulative preference shares and the holders of share options.

2. Any ordinary shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting is entiled o appoint one or more proxies to attend and,
on & poll, fo vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member
of the Company. A proxy form is enclosed. Proxy forms should
be received by the Company’s registrars at the address on the
back of the form not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for
the meeting.

3.  The Company has not enfered into any DBireclors’ service
contracts of more than one year’s duration or with provisions for
predetermined compensation on termination of an amount
which equals or exceeds one year's salary and benefits in kind.
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Five Year Financial Summary

Year Year Year Year Year
ended 31 ended 31 enged 31 ended 31 gnded 31
December December December December December
2001 2000 1999 1958 1997
{restated)
Profit and Loss Account Note £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover

Continuing operations

Operating profit/(loss)
Continuing aparations (i) (1.8} (1.7 10.2 13.1 123
Operating exceptional items -

—

i) 266.6 239.1 239.1 244.4 243.2

(31.9) (15.7) 3.3 (2.5)
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before interest {33.7) (17.4) 0.2 9.8 938
Net interest payable (1.9) (1.6) (1.1 (1.0} (0.9)
Other finance income 3.2 4.0 - - -
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (32.4) (15.0) 9.1 8.8 8.9
Tax on {lossyprofit on ordinary activities {0.3) 0.5 {2.7% (2.8} (2.6)
{Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (32.7} {14.5) 6.4 6.0 6.3
Compensation for industrial disease (iii) 3.7) (4.4 (3.2 (29 (2.9
{Losses)earnings per ordinary share (6C.0)p (26.8)p 11.7p 155p 15.7p
Dividend per ordinary share 0.0p 2.0p 7.0p 7.0p 6.5p
At 31 At 31 At 31 AL 31 At 31
December December December December December
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
{restated)
Balance Sheet Note Em Em Em Em £m
Employment of capital
Fixed assels 37.4 47.8 46.9 453 42.0
Pension asset 17.5 341 - - -
Other net {iiabilities)assets {8.3) 3.4 180 173 1306
46.6 853 64.9 62.6 55.6
Capital employed
Capital and reserves 205 67.8 B5.2 53.6 511
Net borrowings 26.1 17.5 9.7 9.0 45
46.6 853 649 626 556
Net assets per ordinary share {iv) 37.7p 125p 102p 99p 94p
MNotes:
(i) Turnover includes the Group's sharg of the turnover of the joint ventures,
(i} Operating profit is before operating exceptionat items and after Cape's share of operating (loss)/profit in joint venturas.
{iii) Compensaticn for industrial disease represents amounts charged to the profit and loss account. it is before additional operating exceptional
items relating to the South African litigation.
{iv} Met assets per ordinary share has been calculated an the hasis of deferred shares having no real value,
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Products and Services

Products

Fire Barriers and Doors
Durastee! Industrial Doors
Durabloc Insulation Barriers
Curasteel Hydrocarbon
Durasteel SS Barriers
Durasteel Fire Blast
Masterboard

Supalux

Partitioning &
Internal Wall Linings
DecoStyle
Masterboard
Masterclima

Pyrok

Steriboard

Supalux

Master Impact

GP Class O Board

Cladding

BluClad

(Masterfacade, Masterfasadi)
Masterclad (Supaclad)

Pyrok {Masterpanel}

Ceiling & Steelwork

Fire Protection
Durastee)

Monolux 40

Supalux

Supalux Ceiling Panels
Vermicutux

Ceiling Panels

Sterincard Ceiling Panels

Ducting
Duraduct
Duraflax
Durastop
Monolux
Supalux L
Supalux M

Roofing

Mastersoffit
(Masterpanel)
Supalux (Supalux $)
Under-cloaking

Flooring

Durabloc

Pyrok (Masterpanel)
Supalux (Supalux S)
Acoustifloor

Industrial/OME & Marine
Cape Lightweight System
Dalfratex

Duraflex DXP

Duratec A, 750 and 1000
Marine Board

Modlag

Monalite M1, M1-A and G4
Manolux 500, 800 and 250

Newtherm 800, 1000 and 1050

Salu 800, 1000 and 1100

Services

Insulation

The Division pravides therma! and acoustic insulation for industrial
applications. Thermal insulation is provided for temperature
maintenance, personnel protection and for the conservation of heat
and efficient cryogenic insufation at ternperatures down to -160°C,
Cape can provide heat loss calcufations and evaluate savings from
thermal insulation. The Division also has infra-reg eguipment to
enable it to undertake surveys of thermal insulation efficiency.

Scaffolding

Scaffolding is provided to enable site operators and other contractors
to obtain access to all parts of an industrial plant. This can be for
routine maintenance, shutdowns, major projects or new construction
Cape Industrial Services both supplies and erects scaffolding.
Computer-aided design is used where appropriate.

Cape’s UK network of hire and sale depots provides access and
associated equipment to contractors and end users.

Specialist Coatings

The provision of a complete range of coatings for 2 variety of
structures, inciuding petrochemical plants, refineries and offshore
installations in the North Sea. Cape Industrial Services provides
surface protection 2nd the apphication of coatings to prevent

© corrosion of bare surfaces or these to be insulated and clad.

Fire Protection

The application of fire protection to a variely of structures in
environments ranging from the extrema weather conditions in the
North Sea to onshore petrochemicat and other instaltations exposed
to fire risk. Cape Industrial Services offers a range of proprietary
systems including products such as Ourasteel from Cape Calsif

Refractory Linings

The lining of beilers, furnaces, kilns and high temparature petrochemical
reactars with materials to withstand temperatures in excess of 1000°C.
Incorporating the business of RB Hilton, Cape Industrial Services
offers design, supply and installation services to clients world-wide.

Assaciated Services

In response to client needs Ca pe Industrial Services seeks to
maximise the range of industrial services offered. These include
industrial cleaning, fabrication of both insulation and sheet metal
and, for offshore instailations, the provision of an integrated facilties
Mmanagement support service including liting, crane aperations and
janitorial services through specialist partners,
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Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting
8 October 2002.

Dividend payments
3% cumulative preference shares 31 March and 30 September.

Announcement of results
Interim results announced September 2002.

Final results announced March 2003,
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